
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 17th November, 2020 at 2.30 pm

Site Visits

There are no site visits on this occasion.

A G E N D A

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow Borough Council YouTube 
Channel which can be viewed live via the link below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 27th October, 2020.

5 - 20

7.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 12 noon, three working days 
before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  Information on 
how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning 
Business Support Team at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by 
telephone on 01229 876405..
 
(1) Planning Applications – for which requests to speak have been 
made; and
 
(2) Agenda items – for which requests to speak have been made.

8.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)

To note the delegated approvals.

21 - 40

FOR DECISION 

(D) 9.  Planning Applications (Booklets attached).  

To determine the following planning applications:-

Booklet 1

West Point House, Solway Drive, Barrow-in-Furness – Installation 
of 8 camping pods and creation of associated vehicle parking area.

73 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness – Proposed alterations 
and change of use to provide first and second floor living 
accommodation in association with ground floor take-away use 
(retrospective).

41 - 114

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


Booklet 2

Home Bargains, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness – 
Refurbishment of retail units (Class E) to facilitate amalgamation of 
Units A and B, comprising external alterations, including new shop 
front and customer entrance feature, trolley park, revised car parking, 
plant area and associated works.

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Vice-Chair)
M. A. Thomson (Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 9th November, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 27th October, 2020
at 2.30 pm. (Virtual Meeting)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chairman), C. Thomson (Vice-Chairman), 
Assouad, D. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, McLeavy, Nott and Seward.

Officers Present:- Jason Hipkiss (Development Services Manager - Planning and 
Enforcement), Maureen Smith (Principal Planning Officer), Debbie Storr (Head of 
Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Geoff Dowker (Environmental 
Protection & Public Health Team Leader), (Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services 
Officer) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

38 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Burley.

Councillor McLeavy had attended as a substitute for Councillor Burley for this 
meeting only.

39 – Declarations of Interest

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared interests in any matter relating to Cumbria 
County Council as they were Members of that Council.

40 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 6th October, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

41 – Public Participation

RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received in respect of the meeting.

42 – Planning Enforcement Update

The Enforcement Officer reported that the Planning Service continued to function 
and respond in line with current resource allocations.  The level of legal intervention 
had been minimised in order to protect the public purse, yet many cases had been 
resolved by voluntary action and re-direction to appropriate bodies.

The report provided an overview of new enforcement activity and investigation since 
the introduction of restrictions in response to the Covid-19 pandemic in March, 2020.  
Details of the cases had been reported in a broad fashion in order to protect specific 
individuals.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



It had been noted that during lockdown, all but the most serious complaints had been 
deferred as face to face and site visits had been suspended.  The Planning function 
generally had been identified as a lower priority than some other Council Services 
and the Enforcement Officer had volunteered to be deployed to Thorncliffe 
Crematorium where he had assisted and provided resilience to the crucial function 
until the end of June.  As restrictions had begun to ease, the Enforcement Officer 
returned to full duty in early July.

At the height of lockdown, fine weather and increased time at home had encouraged 
many people to embark upon small scale DIY building and garden projects.  Many 
such projects had been perceived as unauthorised and fuelled disputes and existent 
latent conflict between neighbours and communities had been inevitably raised as 
widespread anxiety and uncertainty prevailed.  This had manifested itself in a 
number of calls for service for the Authority to investigate.  In a small number of 
cases it could be argued that advantage had been taken of a less visible 
enforcement capability.  However, even during that most difficult period, priority had 
been given to providing reassurance and assistance to the most vulnerable residents 
including the elderly and those shielding.

In total 41 cased had been recorded over the period, in addition to a significant 
volume of Member and Stakeholder enquiries resolved and actioned.  Retrospective 
applications had been invited ranging from the siting of caravans to chimneys and 
fences.  Most cases had been resolved through negotiation.

Eight reports had related to untidy land or property dereliction of various levels of 
impact which had been investigated.  One example had been a property in Ainslie 
Street where concerns had been raised over the appearance of a house occupied by 
a vulnerable individual.  There had been a multi agency approach to resolving this.  
The property had been cleared and improved resulting in enhanced quality of life for 
the individual concerned.  Another example had related to land in Hartington Street 
which had been the subject of an unsuccessful planning application and appeal and 
had been left unattended and had become overgrown and unsightly.  The area had 
been cleared by Offenders under the supervision of the Probation Service which 
represented the Council’s creative approach and desire to think holistically in 
remedying harm and improving community cohesion.

A Section 215 notice had been served relating to a plot of land in the town centre 
where the owners had failed to carry out their responsibilities to an acceptable 
standard.  Engagement had been re-established and all efforts would be made to 
influence the owner to positively address the issue which had been legally 
underwritten.

Five allegations of unauthorised development in Conservation Areas including 
Dalton and Vickerstown had been received.  Negotiations had been undertaken and 
retrospective applications had been invited where appropriate. 

The department had become embroiled in a particularly acrimonious conflict 
between landowners in Millwood.  A contested application for some agricultural 
structures had been approved by Committee at the end of 2019 on the condition that 
caravans used for storage would be removed from the land.  These had remained 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



during lockdown which had prompted frequent communications from the parties 
concerned.  The Enforcement Officer had made a number of requests for the 
caravans to be removed culminating in a notice being served to start legal 
proceedings which ultimately led to the caravans being taken away.  Considerable 
hostility in the area remained but the Authority had fulfilled its obligations and 
responsibilities in full.

During lockdown, an unauthorised decking platform had been constructed on a roof 
in Askam.  The owners explained that it was to provide a family member who had 
been shielding with some outside space.  The Enforcement Officer had facilitated 
negotiations between the neighbours, an agreement had been reached and the 
platform had been removed voluntarily without the need for further action.

The Enforcement Officer had been pleased to report that the historic issue of 
roadside advertising trailers had not returned.  He had worked closely with partners 
in County Highways to ensure continued compliance.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

43 – Proposed Works to Trees in Barrow Conservation Areas

The Principal Planning Officer reported on proposed works to trees in Conservation 
Areas within Barrow.  The report had been requested by Member of the Committee.

It had been noted that a full survey of all highway trees in Barrow had been 
conducted by Cumbria County Council’s Highways Network team which had resulted 
in the submission of several applications for works to trees across conservation 
areas being received from the County Council Tree Officer.  The applications 
included maintenance works to most trees and the removal of others.  

Under Section 211 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Council are 
provided with six weeks to consider the proposed works to trees and the impact on 
the amenity of the conservation areas, with the option being to agree to the works or 
to make the trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order.  After expiration of the six 
weeks, the works may proceed in no decision has been issued.

It had been noted that this year, the County had undertaken a wider scope of work to 
the Borough trees than usual.  The survey concluded that works to both priority 1 
trees (dead, diseased or dangerous) and priority 2 trees (general maintenance) 
would be undertaken.  Trimming of trees would encourage good growth in line with 
recognised arboricultural practice and to ensure sufficient clearance from 
highways/properties.  

In total it had been proposed that 11 trees be removed for safety reasons.  Details of 
those trees had been included in the applications as a means of notification to the 
Council.  As detailed in Planning Practice Guidance, five working days prior written 
notice must be given to the Authority before cutting down or carrying out other work 
on a dead tree.  The Authority’s consent for such work was not required.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Currently there had been no plans or budget to replace the trees being removed, as 
a result of a decision taken several years ago at the County Council Local Highways 
Committee.

Details of the applications for proposed works to trees had been presented as 
follows:-

Central Barrow Conservation Area
2020/0537 Sidney Street 1 x Alder tree Crown reduce the tree to 

provide a minimum of 2m 
clearance from the adjacent 
property, crown reduce from 
highway to provide 5.2m 
clearance, remove epicormic 
growth and crown raise

2020/0531 Duncan Street 1 x Alder tree Crown reduce from property 
to provide a minimum 2m 
clearance and remove trunk 
growth

2020/0538 St Vincent Street 6 x Alder trees Each tree is itemised with 
similar works to those above

2020/0533 Keith Street 4 x Alder trees Each tree is itemised with 
similar works to those above

2020/0535 Parade Street 2 x Alder trees Each tree is itemised with 
similar works to those above

2020/0529 Clifford Street 1 x Alder tree Remove epicormic growth, 
crown raise to 2.5m over 
footpath and crown raise to  
a maximum of 5.2m over 
highway

2020/0530 Duke Street 
(extending from library 
up towards St Mary’s 
Church)

1 x Sycamore (on western 
side between bus 
terminus exit and The 
Range exit ) 

3 x Maple

4 x Sycamore

1 x Field Maple

1 x Rowan

1 x Whitebeam

Remove tree due to 
significant deadwood        
and signs of decline

Crown raise

Crown reduce from adjacent 
property to provide a min. 
2m clearance

Remove trunk growth

Crown raise

Crown reduce from street 
light to provide min. 1m 
clearance

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2020/0555 Hartington Street 
(adjacent to Furness 
Heating Components)

1 x Maple Crown reduce to provide a 
min. 2m clearance from 
adjacent property.

2020/0546 Abbey Road
Along the area extending 
from the Custom House up 
to the Duke of Edinburgh 
Hotel

Removal:
1 x Maple (outside courts)

1 x Sycamore 

(outside Lakeland House)

1 x Maple 

(Outside Cons. Club)

1 x Maple 

outside welfare centre)

1 x Rowan 

opp. Nan Tait centre car 
park)

1 x Maple 

(near old Evening Mail office)

1 x Maple 

(near old Evening Mail car 
park)

28 various other trees 
surveyed and identified for 
maintenance works

35 trees surveyed and 
identified for maintenance 
works including the 7 to be 
removed.

Barrow Island Conservation Area
2020/0536 Ramsden Dock 

Road
1 x Sycamore Crown reduce from street 

light to provide a minimum 
1m clearance and remove 
damaged main leader

2020/0532 Island Road 1 x Willow Crown clean to remove 
significant dead wood in 
crown

2020/0534 Michaelson Road 2 x Maple 

3 x Maple and 1 x Lime

Remove tree due to 
significant deadwood and 
signs of decline

General maintenance as 
described elsewhere

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Furness Abbey Conservation Area
2020/0557 Rating Lane 2 x Lime 

3 x Maple

1 x Purple Leaf Maple

1 x Cherry

Crown raise

Crown raise/remove 
epicormic growth

Crown raise

Reduce from street light and 
remove trunk growth

2020/0546 Abbey Road 1 x Sycamore

(adjacent to bus stop near 
Abbey House Hotel)

13 trees of various species

In additional to the removal 
of 1 tree maintenance works 
to an additional 13 trees

In determining the applications it had been necessary to consider the impact of the 
proposed works upon each of the conservation areas.  Under Section 72 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the 
Authority must pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of that area.

Full details of the boundaries for each of the conservation areas, along with 
justifications for the proposed works had been included in the report.

Taking into consideration the amount of works to trees across the conservation 
areas, the impact from the proposed works had been considered to be neutral on 
each area, due to increased benefits for the longer term health of the retained trees 
as well as improved public safety.

It had been recognised that the removal of trees with no replacement may be of 
concern to Members, and given the fact that the Borough Council had declared a 
Climate Change Emergency, it had also been considered necessary to refer this 
matter to the Climate Change Working Group.  The decision not to replace trees 
being removed had been taken several years ago by the Local Highways Committee 
and it had been suggested that this historical decision should be highlighted to the 
Local Highways Committee with respect to highways trees.  One option would be the 
introduction of a re-planting strategy to be investigated in relation to these and future 
tree removals.

It had been noted that whilst the trees had not been covered by a Tree Preservation 
Order, it had been considered that it was good practice to require replacement 
planting.  Exceptions for direct replacements would normally be in cases of public 
safety (such as obstruction of sight lines at a junction) or where trees were too close 
together.  However, the recent Government White Paper and the work of the 
Building Beautiful Commission recognised the importance of street trees and that 
runs in parallel to the Council’s recent work on climate change and green 
infrastructure.  Street trees play an important role in terms of aesthetics, function, 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



clean air and cooling and their loss without replacement was a concern.  Officers 
wished to address this through further discussion with the County Council and 
environmental improvement/place-shaping initiatives as they come forward, with a 
replanting strategy across wider part of the Borough being one possible suggestion.

RESOLVED:- To agree to the tree works proceeding as described within the report, 
but that a request be sent to the Cumbria County Council Local Highways 
Committee that a programme of replacement trees is undertaken, and that this 
matter also be brought to the attention of the Climate Change Working Group.

Town and Country Planning Acts

44 – Delegated Decisions

The Director of People and Place submitted for information details of planning 
applications in this report which he had determined under delegated authority 
(Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 2002, confirmed by Council 
24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for your information.  The plans 
recommended for approval under the Town and Country Planning Acts will be 
subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 (April 1971) of the 
Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough Council, in addition to 
any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) beside the applicant’s 
name denotes those applications that were reported to the Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2020/0429 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 16 
(location, extent and surfacing of bin collection points) of planning 
permission 2017/0499 (Erection of 12 dwellings) at Schneider Court, 
Barrow-in-Furness (former Cemetery Cottages Site).

2020/0474 Conversion of attached garage to study and erection of car port with 
slate canopy roof to link study and detached garage at Fearbeck, 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0387 First floor side elevation extension to the existing building, to 
incorporate a bedroom and en-suite facility at 29 Orion Terrace, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0424 Demolition of existing side and rear extension and construction of new 
wrap around side/rear extension to form enlarged kitchen at 1 
Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0493 Change of use from 2 flats to one dwelling house including rear 
ground floor and first floor extension with internal alterations and loft 
conversion at 20 Thorncliffe Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



2020/0510 Application for approval of details reserved by conditions: Railings to 
boundary walls (Condition No. 3), Verification reports for plots 1 & 2 
(Condition 9), Imported soils verification for plots 1 & 2 (Condition 11) 
and Landscaping scheme (Condition No. 12) for planning permission 
2018/0240 (Change of use and conversion of pubic house (Class A4) 
to form three dwelling houses at Eastchurch Villas, Littlestone Close, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0318 Conversion of disused store and workshop to 3 no. residential 
dwellings and associated external alterations at 1 Coulton Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0390 Proposed first floor side extension, single storey front extension and 
single storey rear extension at 16 Orontes Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0458 Demolition of existing garage and erection a two store side extension 
providing enlarged kitchen, bedroom and en-suite on the ground floor 
with single storey front porch and additional bedroom on the first floor 
at 51 Flass Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0172 Construction of side/rear single storey flat-roofed extension to create 
additional kitchen and utility accommodation at 20 Headland Rise, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0514 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2020/0264 (erection of single storey side and rear 
extension) to allow for the omission of a parapet wall to side and rear 
elevations at 83 Yarlside Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0553 Single storey rear extension forming lounge and shower room 
including internal alterations at Natty Nook, Brent Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2020/0558 Notice of intention to Works to trees within Conservation Area):
Ash (1) - Crown raise; Ash (5) - Remove dead trunk branch in crown 
at Tudor Square, Dalton-in-Furness.

2020/0370 Erection of wrap-around single storey side and rear extension to 
provide enlarged kitchen, family room and summer room at 312 
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0399 Erection of a rear kitchen extension at 147 Chapel Street, Dalton-in-
Furness.

The following applications had no comment:-

2020/0657 Five day notice for works to trees to fell a Chestnut suffering from 
honey fungus at 7 Fairfield Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



The following application had communications sent:-

2020/0482 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017, Request for Screening Opinion pursuant to 
Regulation 6 in relation to Marina Village remediation at Marina 
Village, Cavendish Dock Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported on the 
following planning application:-

45 – 74 (site of former Register Offices) Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr D. Warner, JD Wetherspoon Plc in respect of the provision of render to 
south western elevation of public house, provision of side doorway and canopy and 
change of use of vacant land to beer garden and car park with 8 spaces and 
landscaping (amended description) at 74 (site of former Register Offices) Abbey 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on planning application number 2020/0078.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported, including 
the response from the Highway Authority/LLFA which was circulated before the 
meeting in the Extra Information Booklet.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband.  A roll 
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,

RESOLVED:- That planning permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects 
in accordance with the application dated as valid on 23.7.20 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed 
below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Proposed Railing and Wall detail Drawing AD01
Proposed Canopy detail Drawing AD02

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Proposed Beer Garden Drawing PL03 Rev D received on 14.10.20
Proposed Elevation 1 Drawing AV1.01 Rev E received on 14.10.20
Proposed Elevation 2 Drawing AV1.02 Rev D received on 14.10.20
Proposed Elevation 3 Drawing AV1.03 Rev E received on 14.10.20
Proposed Ground Floor Indicative Drainage Plan, Drawing AL2.01 
Rev A received 15.10.20
Proposed Layout Plan Drawing PL02 Rev A received 15.10.20

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority in the interests of the 
appearance of the development and the setting of the conservation 
area, the visual amenity of the area and the amenity of adjacent 
residents.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. Prior to the commencement of any development a landscape scheme 
for the site, showing the trees, shrubs and planters, together with 
details of a timetable for implementation, (including any phasing of 
such a scheme) and future maintenance, together with details for the 
regular clearing of any debris along the Abbey Road landscaped 
frontage, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall be submitted on a plan not greater that 
1:500 in scale and shall contain details of numbers, locations and 
species of plants to be used. The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details, and all planting and subsequent 
maintenance shall be to current British Standards.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the character of 
the conservation area in which the site is located.

4. Prior to the construction of the proposed boundary wall and railings full 
details of the proposed bricks and railing design, including brick 
samples, shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority.

Reason

In the interests of the appearance of the development and the visual 
amenity of the area on this prominent site with in the Central Barrow 
Conservation Area.

Before Occupation

5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following beneficial use of any part of the development, or in 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with 
the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed, or 
become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced by the 
landowner in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to 
any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the character of 
the conservation area in which the site is located.

6. On site facilities, in the form of a screened enclosure, for the storage of 
recycling receptacles and a wheeled refuse storage bin of suitable 
capacities to serve the development must be provided before the 
beneficial use of the beer garden begins as indicated on the approved 
plans set out in Condition 2 above. The approved scheme shall 
thereafter be permanently maintained to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Authority.

Reason

In the interests of environmental amenity by ensuring a suitable 
provision of refuse storage on the site, and in the interests of visual 
amenity due to the location within the Central conservation area.

Operational Conditions

7. The proposed beer garden shall operate in accordance with the Beer 
Garden Management Statement received by the Planning Authority on 
5.10.20.

Reason

In the interests of nearby residents and to minimise the potential for 
noise and disturbance.

8. The terminal hour for the use of the external beer garden is 9pm 
Sunday-Thursday and 10pm Friday and Saturday. There shall be no 
public access after this time and the gates shall be locked. The area 
shall be regularly cleared of food and drink receptacles with all food 
and drink receptacles cleared from the beer garden by 9.30pm 
Sunday-Thursday and 10.30pm Friday and Saturday.

Reason

In the interests of minimising the potential for any noise and 
disturbance to local residents.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



9. The external beer garden shall not host live music or events such as 
quizzes, karaoke, comedy events or similar or include fire pits or 
external televisions.

Reason

In the interests of minimising the potential for any noise and 
disturbance to local residents.

10. Other than the proposed festoon lighting and dimmable wall lights to 
pathways which is hereby approved, no additional external lighting shall 
be installed on the site without the prior written consent of the Planning 
Authority.

Reason

In the interests of minimising light pollution and potential disturbance to 
local residents.

46 – Car Storage Compound at Salthouse Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr T. Ellor, South Lakes Car Sales Ltd in respect of the change of use of part 
of former car sales into self-storage site (14 containers for storage of household 
items) at Car Storage Compound at Salthouse Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown 
on planning application number 2020/0414.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported, including 
the response from the Highway Authority/LLFA which was circulated before the 
meeting in the Extra Information Booklet.

It was moved by Councillor Hall and seconded by Councillor Edwards that the 
application be granted, subject to the inclusion of the amended conditions, circulated 
within the Extra Information Booklet; and an additional condition being added 
requiring the colour of the units being agreed so as not to have a detrimental visual 
impact on the surrounding area.

A roll call was undertaken and it was unanimously,

RESOLVED:- That planning permission be granted, subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 28.7.20 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Proposed site plan drawing RRG/SCS/001/A
Photograph of proposed container ref LJ/SC/001
Proposed site plan drawing RRG/SCS/002
Site plan RRG/SCS/003

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. The vehicular crossing over the footway, including the lowering of 
kerbs, shall be carried out to the specification agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority following the submission of acceptable details. The 
vehicle crossing and lowered kerb shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved specification prior to the commencement of use of 
the approved development.

Reason

To ensure a suitable standard of crossing for pedestrian safety.

4. The access drive shall be surfaced in bituminous or cement bound 
materials, or otherwise bound and shall be constructed and completed 
before the development is brought into use. This surfacing shall extend 
for a distance of at least 5.0 metres inside the site, as measured from 
the carriageway edge of the adjacent highway.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety.

5. Details of all measures to be taken by the applicant/developer to 
prevent surface water discharging onto or off the highway shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
development being commenced. Any approved works shall be 
implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be 
maintained operational thereafter.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In the interests of highway safety and environmental management.

6. No development shall commence until a surface water drainage 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The drainage scheme must include:

(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the 
National Planning Practice Guidance (or any subsequent 
amendment thereof). This investigation shall include evidence of 
an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for 
infiltration of surface water;

(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the 
local planning authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted 
by the investigations); and 

(iii) A timetable for its implementation.

The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national standards.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved drainage scheme.

Reason

In order to ensure the satisfactory treatment of surface water.

Before Occupation

7. The use of the development hereby approved shall not commence until 
the access has been designed to include a 2m x 2m visibility splay onto 
the footway for pedestrian safety and this shall thereafter be so 
retained.

Reason

In the interests of pedestrian and highway safety.

8. Prior to the commencement of use of the development hereby 
approved a turning area shall be provided within the site to ensure that 
vehicles can enter and exit the site in a forward gear. The turning area 
shall thereafter be retained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Operational Conditions

9. No storage of materials shall take place on the site other than within the 
containers hereby approved. There shall be no open air storage of 
materials.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

10. Any storage containers placed on the site shall be factory sprayed to a 
dark green finish in accordance with one of the following colours and 
shall thereafter be so retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior 
written consent to any variation:

RAL 6007 Bottle Green, RAL 6012 Black Green, RAL 6016 Turquoise 
Green, RAL 6020 Chrome Green

Reason

In the interests of appearance of the development and the visual 
amenity of the area.

11. The development shall be available for use and open to the public only 
between the hours of 8am and 8pm.

Reason

In the interests of the amenity of nearby residents.

47 – Newholme Farm, Rampside Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr J. Colverson, Solar Ventus in respect of an application for approval of 
details reserved by Condition No. 8 and No. 9 (Excess Amplitude Modulation Details) 
of planning permission 2012/840 (Installation of a 45.5 high wind turbine (Measured 
to blade tip) without complying with Condition No. 5 of Planning Permission 
2012/0642) at Newholme Farm, Rampside Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on 
planning application number 2020/0400.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband. A roll 
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,

RESOLVED:- That 

(a) the applicants be informed that the submitted information is insufficient 
for the Council to accept, particularly in relation to the mitigation 
scheme operating at night time only, and that further information is 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



required in relation to a prospective monitoring process and the future 
investigation of EAM issues, including daytime EAM; ideally this should 
be within a single document. Additional information is also sought from 
the applicants to verify the effectiveness of the mitigation strategy, 
monitoring and complaints analysis before reaching a decision; the 
Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) be 
authorised to approve the application if satisfactory details are 
received.

(b) should satisfactory information not be forthcoming within 3 months of 
the date of this Committee meeting then the Development Services 
Manager (Planning and Enforcement) be authorised to refuse the 
application.

The meeting closed at 3.18 pm.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

17/11/2020

14/10/2020

04/11/2020

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

lmoscrop
Typewritten text
Director of People and Place 



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0418

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
27/10/2020

Location:
6 Leighton Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3RR

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side extension and single
storey rear extension forming additional bedroom,
store, wc and garden room.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0590

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/10/2020

Location:
44 Caspian Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7HW

Proposal:
Proposed first floor extension providing new
bedroom with en-suite. Rear single storey
extension forming sun room and conversion of
garage forming store and wc.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B21/2020/0601

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/10/2020

Location:
14 Elterwater Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4PH

Proposal:
Side living room extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B21/2020/0430

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/10/2020

Location:
5 Dane Ghyll Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4PZ

Proposal:
Extension to existing sun room.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0470

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/10/2020

Location:
31 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4JS

Proposal:
Proposed lounge/store extension to front elevation
with covered side passage and repositioning of
front door.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B13/2020/0520

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
02/11/2020

Location:
Land to rear of 68 Thorncliffe Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of two detached four bedroom houses.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2020/0576

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/10/2020

Location:
51 Kirkstone Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4ND

Proposal:
Part conversion of double garage to habitable
accommodation existing roof height of garage to
be raised from 2450mm to 2950mm to
accommodate the raising of garage floor to
existing house floor level.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B28/2020/0380

Decision:
SPLIT

Decision Date:
21/10/2020

Location:
The Bay Horse, 136 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 4HS:

Proposal:
Application for works to trees subject of Tree
Preservation Order 1997 No. 4: T8 Sycamore -
Crown raise from the road to give a clearance of 5
metres from the road surface to the canopy. To
prune the canopy to give a two metre clearance
from the buildings. T9 Elm - Crown raise from the
road to give a clearance of 5 metres from the road
surface to the canopy. To prune the canopy to give
a two  metre clearance from the buildings.
T10 Sycamore - Crown raise from the road to give
a clearance of 5 metres from the road surface to
the canopy. To reduce the height by 2 metres.
T11 To reduce the canopy height by 2 metres.
T12,T13,T14,T15 Chestnut  - To crown  raise the
canopy over the adjacent driveway to give a 6m
metre clearance from the driveway surface to the
crown  canopy. To reduce the South side and top
of the canopy by 2 metres and T16 Sycamore - To
fell

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0532

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Island Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Willow (2) - crown clean to remove all significant
deadwood in crown.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0534

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Michaelson Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) - Maple (3) – remove tree due
to significant deadwood and signs of decline.
Maple (4) – remove tree due to significant
deadwood and signs of decline. Maple (9) –
remove trunk growth and crown raise. Maple (16) –
crown raise. Maple (17) – remove trunk growth.
Lime (18) – remove trunk growth.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0472

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/10/2020

Location:
46 Wheatclose Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4EJ

Proposal:
Proposed rear sunroom extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B18/2020/0496

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/10/2020

Location:
Holker Street Ground, Wilkie Road, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA14 5UW

Proposal:
Erection of a camera platform (Gantry) on top of
existing roof of stand (Retrospective)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 24

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0529

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Clifford Street-Parade Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) - Alder (1) – remove epicormic
growth, crown raise to 2.5 meters over footpath
and crown raise to a  maximum of 5.2 meters over
the highway

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0530

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Duke Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Sycamore (31) – crown reduce from street light to
provide a minimum of 1 meter clearance.
Sycamore (32) – remove root growth. Rowan (35)
– crown raise. Sycamore (40) – remove trunk
growth. Maple (44) – crown raise. Whitebeam (45)
– crown reduce from street light to provide a
minimum of 1 meter clearance.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0531

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Duncan Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) - Alder (1) – crown reduce from
property to provide a minimum of 2 meter
clearance and remove trunk growth.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0533

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Keith Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Alder (1) – crown reduce tree to provide a
minimum of 2 meter clearance from adjacent
property, 1 meter clearance from street light and to
provide a minimum of 5.2 meter clearance of the
highway. Alder (2) – crown reduce tree to provide
a minimum of 2 meter clearance from adjacent
property, provide a minimum of 5.2 meter
clearance of the highway and crown raise. Alder
(3) – crown reduce tree to provide a minimum of
2meter clearance from adjacent property, provide
a minimum of 5.2 meter clearance of the highway.
Alder (4) – remove trunk growth and crown raise.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0535

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Parade Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Alder (1) – crown reduce tree to provide a
minimum of 2 meter clearance from adjacent
property. Alder (2) – crown reduce tree to provide
a minimum of 2 meter clearance from adjacent
property, crown raise and remove trunk growth.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0536

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Ramsden Dock Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Sycamore (2) - crown reduce from street light to
provide a minimum of 1meter clearance and
remove damaged main leader.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0537

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Sidney Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Alder (1) – crown reduce tree to provide a
minimum of 2 meter clearance from adjacent
property, crown reduce from highway to provide
5.2 meter clearance, remove epicormic growth and
crown raise.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0586

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/10/2020

Location:
10 Parklands Drive Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7JP

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming an en-suite
and utility room, conversion of side garage into a
lounge and timber fence to front corner.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Page 26

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0609

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
5 Windrush Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3UQ

Proposal:
Proposed single storey side extension forming
attached garage.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B21/2020/0301

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/10/2020

Location:
2 Holmes Green Cottages Broughton Road Dalton-
in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8JP

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension forming kitchen

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B18/2020/0450

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/10/2020

Location:
Land to the rear of 137 Steel Street Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7BS

Proposal:
Erection of a detached garage

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Vivienne
Pearson

Reference:
B28/2020/0546

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Ramsden Square and area between Rating Lane
and Dalton Lane at Abbey Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) various species of trees along
Abbey Road Barrow

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0538

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
28/10/2020

Location:
St Vincent Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) -
Alder (1) –crown reduce from highway to provide
5.2 meter clearance, remove epicormic growth and
crown raise.
Alder (2) – crown reduce from highway to provide
5.2 meter clearance, crown reduce from adjacent
property to provide a minimum of 2 meter
clearance and crown raise.
Alder (3) – crown reduce from highway to provide
5.2 meter clearance, crown reduce from adjacent
property to provide a minimum of 2 meter
clearance and crown raise. Alder (4) – crown
reduce from highway to provide 5.2meter
clearance and crown raise. Alder (6) – crown
reduce from highway to provide 5.2 meter
clearance, crown reduce from adjacent property to
provide a minimum of 2 meter clearance and
crown raise. Alder (7) – crown reduce from
highway to provide 5.2 meter clearance and crown
raise.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0555

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Hartington Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) - Maple (No. 62) on plan -
crown reduce tree to provide a minimum of 2 meter
clearance from adjacent property.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0557

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/10/2020

Location:
Rating Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area) - Lime (176) crown raise.
Hornbeam (179) crown raise.
Lime (181) crown raise.
Maple (182) crown raise.
Maple (183) remove epicormic growth and crown
raise.
Maple (184) crown raise.
Purple leaf maple (188) crown raise.
Lime (189) crown raise.
Cherry (191) crown reduce from street light and
remove trunk growth.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 28

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B26/2020/0633

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
15/10/2020

Location:
Wax Lyrical London Road Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria LA12 0LD

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) for the
installation of plant and equipment.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0373

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
14/10/2020

Location:
122 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8RE

Proposal:
Notice of intention (works to trees within
conservation area) : Field Maple T1 on plan,
reduce back selected branches to provide 2
metres clearance to adjacent building (Havendale,
Beckside Road)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0559

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/09/2020

Location:
82 Ocean Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3DB

Proposal:
Loft conversion with dormer and single storey
extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
14/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0513

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
20/08/2020

Location:
10 Skelwith Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PF

Proposal:
Single storey extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
16/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0511

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
19/08/2020

Location:
22 Parklands Drive Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7JP

Proposal:
Proposed single storey rear extension and
associated structural alterations and new
window opening to store.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
19/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0570

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/09/2020

Location:
2 Beverley Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5LL

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension and removal of
internal walls.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
16/10/2020

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0551

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
03/09/2020

Location:
17 Paradise Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7HA

Proposal:
Erection of a detached two storey house with
garage.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0636

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
05/10/2020

Location:
4 Strathaird Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3DE

Proposal:
Dormer loft conversion.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
04/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0449

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/09/2020

Location:
67 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3JZ

Proposal:
Conversion and extension of garage, changes
to garage roof including skylights and
replacement of existing window with full length
window and bi-fold doors.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0581

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/09/2020

Location:
17 Liddle Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0SW

Proposal:
Garage conversion with extension to form
kitchen and first floor bedroom extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0688

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/10/2020

Location:
32 Chapel Field Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3RQ

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0690

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/10/2020

Location:
53 Victoria Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5JZ

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall between kitchen and
dining room and widen existing door opening
for patio doors.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0695

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
20/10/2020

Location:
70 Powerful Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3PH

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall between the kitchen
and dining room.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
20/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0697

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
20/10/2020

Location:
3 Featherstone Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0GX

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
20/10/2020

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0601

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
21/09/2020

Location:
14 Elterwater Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4PH

Proposal:
Side living room extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FN/2020/0603

Application
Type:
Full Plans Non
Vatable

Received:
22/09/2020

Location:
40 Valley Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9JG

Proposal:
Rear living area extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0713

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/10/2020

Location:
31 Gloucester Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9RX

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breasts, removal of wall
between kitchen and living room and the
creation of 2 ensuite shower rooms.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0732

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/11/2020

Location:
8 Cowlarns Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HH

Proposal:
Loft conversion

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/11/2020

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0679

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/10/2020

Location:
313 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1BS

Proposal:
Removal of ground floor chimney breasts and
formation of two ensuite bathrooms.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0890

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/10/2020

Location:
21 Chaucer Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9UA

Proposal:
Removal of L/B Wall and fitting of new RSJ.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0337

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/10/2020

Location:
36 Steel Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7BP

Proposal:
Rebuild of double storey extension and
internal alterations.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0714

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/10/2020

Location:
9 Himalaya Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3HE

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall and chimney breast
on ground floor.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/10/2020

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0715

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/10/2020

Location:
86 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3JJ

Proposal:
Formation of ensuite bathroom in existing
bedroom.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0723

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/10/2020

Location:
7 Florence Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2DB

Proposal:
Removal of front chimney breast and provision
of ensuite bathrooms to bedrooms.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0687

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/10/2020

Location:
76A Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4HQ

Proposal:
Proposed alterations to create open-plan
living/kitchen/diner.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0272

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/11/2020

Location:
89 Sutherland Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2BN

Proposal:
Renovation of derelict building, including new
roof structure, new floor structure, new
staircase, new glazing and full thermal
upgrade.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/11/2020

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0730

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/11/2020

Location:
14 Crompton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8ND

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall between kitchen and
dining room.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0731

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/11/2020

Location:
9 Raglan Court Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2UL

Proposal:
Widening of 2 doorways, structural openings
and create opening for patio doors with access
ramp.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0739

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/11/2020

Location:
20 Clevelands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AE

Proposal:
Internal alterations.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0252

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
20/08/2020

Location:
32 Verdun Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3LB

Proposal:
Single storey side extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
20/10/2020

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0602

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
22/09/2020

Location:
41 Derby Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9TG

Proposal:
Rear sun room extension.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0606/
MAST

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/09/2020

Location:
Former Lonsdale Hospital School Street
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of a pair of two storey semi detached
houses (Plots 36 and 37).

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0608

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/09/2020

Location:
22 Chaucer Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9UA

Proposal:
Rear living area extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/10/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0658

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
09/10/2020

Location:
8 Devonshire Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8SW

Proposal:
Replacement of back door.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
16/10/2020

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/11/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0470

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
20/10/2020

Location:
31 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JS

Proposal:
Proposed lounge/ store extension to front
elevation with covered side passage and
repositioning of front door.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
20/10/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0734

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/11/2020

Location:
50 Harrel Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9LJ

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breast, removal of
internal wall, and formation of new opening for
bi-fold doors.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/11/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0578

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/09/2020

Location:
28 Kentmere Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4NL

Proposal:
Loft conversion.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
23/10/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0364

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
02/10/2020

Location:
99 Friars Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9NX

Proposal:
Erection of a single storey mono-pitched roof
side extension to provide lounge, wet room
and 2 bedrooms.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/10/2020

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

17th November 2020 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team 
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405.. 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Development Services Manager 
(Planning and Enforcement) 

 

Page 1 of 29

Page 41

Agenda Item 9

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


B20/2020/0440 
Planning Committee  
17th November 2020  

  

  
Application Number : B20/2020/0440 Date Valid :23/07/2020 

Address : West Point House, Solway 
Drive, Barrow-in-Furness Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Installation of 8 camping pods and creation of associated vehicle parking area 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr & Mrs J Phillips   Agent : Stephenson Halliday Ltd  

Statutory Date : 17/09/2020 Recommendation : Approval with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday 

Accommodation 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC9 - Caravan and Camping Sites 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI2 - Green Wedges 

Summary of Main Issues 

Camping pods should be accommodated into their setting with no significant visual impact 
and bio diversity enhancements included 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

 

Page 2 of 29

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B20/2020/0440


 

Response to Publicity and Consultations  

Development advertised on site.  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Allonby Close 2, 4, 
Dovedale Close 1, 2, 3, 4, 
Irwell Road 80, 
Lune Close 1, 4, 
Silloth Crescent 1, 2, 26, 

Solway Drive 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31, 33, 35, 37, 39, 9, West Point 
House, 

Stonethwaite 
Court 1, 11, 3, 5, 7, 9, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

3 2 1 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Barrow Borough Council (Street Care) 
Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Fire and Rescue) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 29

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

List of Organisation Responses  

Barrow Borough Council Public Protection 11/08/2020  

“No objections to this application. 

It may need a caravan site licence depending on the permission granted”. 

Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor) 21/08/2020  

"Many thanks for your communication dated 3rd August 2020. Please forgive the delay in 
responding to this consultation. 

I have no observations or comments to offer in respect of this application." 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 06/08/2020  

"Our response is the following: 

The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria 
County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have 
certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to 
take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 01/09/2020  

"Thank you for your consultation on 3 August 2020 regarding the above Planning 
Application. Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed 
below. 

Highways response: 

The number of car parking spaces and trips this development would generate is of  a 
particular concern on this road. In the context of existing and committed development under 
way, these additional trips would have a very minor impact on the highway. 

 

 

Page 4 of 29

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



 

 

I do note that the existing access into West Point House off the highway and across the 
wide verge is poor and suffers from over-run.  Also, the access arrangement to the car park 
area is not clear - is it just the one access or both that are proposed? Also, what the width 
of the access road and whether it is wide enough to allow cars to pass each other is 
unclear.  Proper 45 degree splay or 3m radius kerbs should be provided and more detail of 
the access road layout is required to demonstrate that cars will not be forced to drive over 
the verge. 

Also, please provide further details of the servicing arrangements (i.e. refuse collection 
points) 

Conclusion: 

CCC as the Highway Authority and LLFA recommend refusal due to: 

Inadequate information has been submitted to satisfy the Local Planning Authority that the 
proposal is acceptable in terms of: 

a) access 

b) road layout 

and 

The proposed surface water drainage strategy is unacceptable. A surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice 
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of how the 
scheme shall be managed after completion) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent 
replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either 
directly or indirectly." 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 08/10/2020  

"Yes, the outstanding issues were very minor.  The clarifications below and plans address 
the outstanding Highway and LLFA concerns for this site." 

  

 

Page 5 of 29

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 01/09/2020  

"Thank you for your consultation on 3 August 2020 regarding the above Planning 
Application. Cumbria County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has 
reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

LLFA response: 

I note that the proposal is to discharge the surface water into the mains (UU combined 
system).  I would be surprised if UU will accept this proposal, since it is under pressure at 
the moment and they have previously stated that there should be no net increase in surface 
water flows into their system on Solway Drive.  Instead, I  expect a surface water drainage 
strategy to be submitted considering the hierarchy of drainage options as described in the 
NPPF.  The proposal to drain surface water into the foul system is unacceptable to the 
LLFA. 

Conclusion: 

CCC as the Highway Authority and LLFA recommend refusal due to: 

Inadequate information has been submitted to satisfy the Local Planning Authority that the 
proposal is acceptable in terms of: 

a) access 

b) road layout 

and 

The proposed surface water drainage strategy is unacceptable. A surface water drainage 
scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice 
Guidance with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of how the 
scheme shall be managed after completion) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent 
replacement national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, no surface water shall discharge to the public sewerage system either 
directly or indirectly." 

 

Page 6 of 29

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 08/10/2020  

"Yes, the outstanding issues were very minor. The clarifications below and plans address 
the outstanding Highway and LLFA concerns for this site." 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 06/08/2020  

"I have consulted with the emergency planners who are responsible for the preparation of 
the off-site emergency plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public 
Information Regulations (REPPIR) 2019. They have provided adequate assurance that the 
proposed development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning 
arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development." 

United Utilities 06/08/2020  

"With regards to the above development proposal, United Utilities Water Limited (‘United 
Utilities’) wishes to provide the following comments. 

Drainage 

In accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the  National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. 

We request the following drainage conditions are attached to any subsequent approval to 
reflect the above approach: 

Condition 1 – Surface water 

No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage 
scheme must include: 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 29

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

(i)   An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation shall 
include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for 
infiltration of surface water; 

(ii)  A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); and 

(iii) A timetable for its implementation. 

The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent 
replacement national standards. 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the 
approved drainage scheme. 

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 

Condition 2 – Foul water 

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution 

The applicant can discuss any of the above with Developer Engineer, by email at 
wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please note, United Utilities are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the 
local watercourse system.  This is a matter for discussion with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and / or the Environment Agency (if the watercourse is classified as main river). 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
Adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The detailed layout should be prepared with 
consideration of what is necessary to secure a development to an adoptable standard. This 
is important as drainage design can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 
The proposed design should give consideration to long term operability and give United 
Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application 
be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly 
recommend that no construction commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted 
as part of the Section 104 agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by 
United Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is 
done entirely at the developers own risk and could be subject to change. 

Page 8 of 29

Page 48

Agenda Item 9

mailto:wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk


 

 

Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can fail or 
become ineffective. As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have a duty to 
advise the Local Planning Authority of this potential risk to ensure the longevity of the 
surface water drainage system and the service it provides to people.  We also wish to 
minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage system having a detrimental impact on the 
public sewer network should the two systems interact. We therefore recommend the Local 
Planning Authority include a condition in their Decision Notice regarding a  management 
and  maintenance regime  for  any  sustainable drainage system  that  is included as part of 
the proposed development. 

For schemes of 10 or more units and other major development, we recommend the Local 
Planning Authority consults with the Lead Local Flood Authority regarding the exact wording 
of any condition. You may find the below a useful example: 

Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum: 

a.   Arrangements  for  adoption  by  an  appropriate  public  body  or  statutory  undertaker, 
 or, 

management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 

b.   Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme 
throughout its lifetime. 

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan. 

Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable 
drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of 
the development. 

Please note United Utilities cannot provide comment on the management and maintenance 
of an asset that is owned by a third party management and maintenance company.   We 
would not be involved in the discharge of the management and maintenance condition in 
these circumstances. 

 

 

Page 9 of 29

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



 

Water Supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project and the design and construction period should be accounted for. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at  DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply  (water 
fittings) Regulations 1999. 

United Utilities’ Property, Assets and Infrastructure 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows: 

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 

Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility  to  investigate the  possibility of  any  United 
Utilities’  assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the 
exact relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed 
development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/ 

You can also view the plans for free. To make an appointment to view our sewer records at 
your local authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water 
and the sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring 0370 
751 0101 to book an appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further. 

Should this planning application be approved the applicant should contact United Utilities 
regarding a potential water supply or connection to public sewers. Additional information is 
available on our website  http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx" 

Page 10 of 29

Page 50

Agenda Item 9

mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk
https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/
tel:0370%20751%200101
tel:0370%20751%200101
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx


  

  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 West Point House is a detached former CCC care home which was changed to shared 
residential accommodation in 2011. The property operate as self catering accommodation 
with bedrooms rented on a weekly basis with kitchen/lounge facilities shared. The focus is 
on the business community 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Installation of 8 camping pods and associated vehicle parking area to the rear of West 
Point House 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 1976/0836 O.S. Field No. 7478, Cow Tarn Lane, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of a timber 
shelter to house horses Appcond 10/11/1976 
 
3.2 1990/0305 Field No. 34, Solway Drive, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of stables Approved 
20/04/1990 
 
3.3 B20/2011/0690 West Point House Solway Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3XN 
Conversion of former nursing home to shared residential accommodation (30 individual 
rooms in total) Appcond 22-DEC-2011 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application is for the installation of 8 camping pods on land to the rear of West Point 
House. Also included is additional car parking (spaces) on a lawned area at the side of the 
House. The pods are of timber construction with curved roofs. They measure 4.8m x 3.2m 
and provide a sleeping area, wet room and kitchen/living space. The units are 2.79m high 
but are raised above the ground by 0.25m.  Access is shown to be provided by raised 
timber board walks designed to minimise the impact on ground flora. 

4.2 There is a very strong demand for accommodation in Barrow but the focus is on the 
business community. West Point House reflects this and is described as providing serviced 
accommodation. Rooms are rented on a weekly basis (self catering) with lounge and 
kitchen facilities shared. The proposed camping pods are described as being for tourism. 
However there is no material change of use involved between accommodation used by 
guests visiting for leisure or business purposes.  

4.3 The starting point for the consideration of any application is the development plan which 
for the Borough is the Local Plan which covers the period 2016 to 2031. The proposals are 
assessed against local plan policies below 

Page 11 of 29

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



 

 

Local Plan Policy EC11 self catering holiday accommodation 

4.4 However this policy is drafted in relation to buildings with reference to 
conversions/extensions and new build 

EC9 Caravan and camping sites 

4.5 The camping pods are pre fabricated, and are placed on the land. As such they appear 
to meet the statutory definition of a caravan. As a result policy EC9 appears more relevant 
than EC11. The policy lists various criteria which are listed below in italics with commentary 
beneath 

a) Suitable access is available from primary or district distributor roads 

Solway Drive does not meet this definition as a 'primary' road is one serving two primary 
locations i.e.  towns, and a distributor would be a road such as West Shore Road which 
distributes traffic between different districts of the same settlement 

b) Would not cause nuisance to sensitive neighbours in terms of noise or traffic 

4.6 The scale of the proposal (8 camping pods) is modest both in terms of the existing use 
on site (30 rooms) and the number of properties served via Solway Drive. Solway Drive 
was, for example, considered adequate to serve 61 dwellings which are currently being built 
on land next to West Point House. As such the proposal is unlikely to impact on the 
amenities of neighbours. The pods would also be located at the rear of West Point House 
furthest from existing residents such that noise generally should not be an issue 

c) Sites are connected to mains foul where practicable 

Pods to be connected to the foul sewer in Solway Drive 

d) The area is not at flood risk 

The site is shown outside any flood risk areas 

e) Proposals for permanent caravan sites will be expected to provide clean water, sanitation 
disposal, and adequate fire protection equipment 

4.7 The units will have a water supply, wc and fire protection equipment is a matter for site 
licencing 

f) relates to ancillary buildings -N/A 

 

Page 12 of 29

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



 

GI2 Green wedges 

4.8 The camping pods, but not the car parking, would be located within a Green Wedge. The 
wedge covers an extensive area which separates the West Shore area from North Scale 
and Vickerstown. A significant part of the land is owned by the Borough Council and an 
extensive community woodland was planted in the early 2000's along with a network of way 
marked paths. This woodland borders the application site and a way marked path runs 
along its southern boundary and beyond an area of woodland, parallel to its eastern 
boundary.  

4.9 Policy GI2 states that proposals within green wedges will be supported provided that: 

a) Provide visual relief /physical separation between settlements 

b) Demonstrate how development would maintain or enhance open  character 

c) Enhance biodiversity where possible 

d) Maintain or enhance its value as a setting for recreation 

e) Protect the value of heritage assets 

4.10 The boundaries of the site are well vegetated such that views into the site are filtered 
from the path running along its southern boundary and screened entirely from the path 
running north to south to the east. Pods will be visible in views down the sides of the 
building from Solway Drive. Reservations were raised with the applicant re the proximity of 
certain pods to site boundaries but this has been addressed with an amended layout plan 
which shows the number of pods reduced from 10 to 8. 

4.11 The way the development is proposed to be carried out is described in the Planning 
Statement which accompanies the application as follows: 

'Specific measures adopted to integrate with existing green infrastructure include the 
retention of standing, immature trees, and the preservation of rough grassland habitat by 
elevating the pods [and the board walks] above ground level' [5.3] 

4.12 The proposal would protect the habitat characteristics and visual quality of the green 
wedge' [5.4] 

4.13 The applicant has requested a micro siting condition to enable minor adjustments 
on site so as to minimise impacts and proposes an on site watching brief by an ecologist 
together with bio diversity enhancement measures. An extended phase 1 habitat survey 
accompanies the application. 

4.14 Having regard to the modest size of the units and the site's relationship to the Green 
Wedge, the development is unlikely to harm the open character of the area 

Page 13 of 29

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



 

4.15 Having regard to all of the above there should be no conflict with Local Plan Policies 
DS2 or DS5 

Other material considerations - consultation responses 

4.16 CCC Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority 

4.17 CCC raised a number of concerns which were relayed to the applicant. This resulted in 
some minor changes being carried out. CCC were re consulted and who responded as 
follows: 

4.18 Yes, the outstanding issues were very minor.  The clarifications below and plans 
address the outstanding Highway and LLFA concerns for this site' [8/10/2020] 

4.19 UU and various other organisations consulted. Responses are reproduced in full above 
- no objections 

Other material considerations - representations 

4.20 A resident of Solway Drive has objected to the development. Concerns expressed are 
that camping pods are not suitable in a residential area, that they will create excessive 
traffic and that there are better sites for the development. 

4.21 The site chosen is to the rear of West Point House, in the Green Wedge such that it is a 
semi rural rather than residential in character. Traffic is unlikely to be significant. 

4.22 Cumbria Tourist Board and Cumbria Tourism have both written in support of the 
application citing the objective of spreading out tourism benefits to a wider area of Cumbria. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 There is some conflict with Local Plan policy namely EC9 which requires amongst other 
things proposals for camping and caravan sites to be accessed from a primary or a 
distributor road. This is based on the premise that such sites are normally highly trafficked. 
However other material considerations out weigh this conflict including; 

• the small scale nature of the proposed development, 
• the absence of any objection from CCC as highway authority 
• the positive benefits of the development as described by the Cumbria Tourist Board 

and Cumbria Tourism  
• lack of harm to the Green Wedge. 

5.2 A condition limiting occupation to holiday accommodation could be imposed but in 
practice this is unlikely to prevent occupation by those involved on local contracts. As any 
condition needs to be enforceable a condition preventing occupation as a main residence is 
recommended in its place. 

Page 14 of 29

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions :  
 
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the application dated 
21/07/2020 as amended and the following documents : 
Site location plan ref P.01 
Site Layout Plan ref P.02 rev C 
Pod Elevation ref P.03 
Perspective View ref PGA .01 
Floor Plan ref PGA.02 
Roof Plan ref PGA .03 
Front and rear elevations ref PGA.04 
Side elevations PGA 05 
Board walk detail ref Derwent Water 8-25 
Preliminary Ecological Assessment (Revision A) [Wilde Ecology 
  
Reason 
  
To ensure the development is only carried out only as approved 

3. The camping pods shall not be occupied as a person's sole or main place of residence 

Reason 

The camping pods are located within a green wedge where general housing development is 
unlikely to accord with Local Plan Policy GI2, the justification for the development and its 
assessment was based on the pods providing holiday accommodation (Local Plan Policy 
EC9), and the pods are small units of accommodation which are unlikely to be suitable as a 
person's sole or main residence 

4. The Owners/operators shall maintain an up to date register of the names of all occupiers 
of individual camping pods on the site, and of their main home addresses, and shall make 
this information freely available at all reasonable times to the  Planning Authority. 

Reason 

To ensure that condition no 3 is enforceable 

5.Notwithstanding the approved plans and prior to the commencement of any 
development pursuant to this permission the following details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 

 

Page 15 of 29

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



 

• Details of the competent Ecological Clerk of Works responsible for overseeing the 
installation of the visitor accommodation, pedestrian access arrangements and 
biodiversity enhancement in accordance with Biodiversity Net Gain Enhancements 
detailed in the 'Preliminary Ecological Assessment (Revision A)', 

• Full details of the final micro-siting of each pod and pedestrian access way within the 
proposed camping pod area as shown on Site Plan Drawing No: P.02 Rev: C 
including details of all trees and ground vegetation retained in-situ.   

The works to install all visitor accommodation units and pedestrian access arrangements 
shall be supervised by a competent Ecological Clerk of Works and retained as such 
thereafter. 

6. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of biodiversity enhancement 
including a programme for implementation shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and which shall be based on the 'Enhancements' 
section of the 'Preliminary Ecological Assessment (Revision A)' which accompanied the 
application [Wilde Ecology 25/05/2020]. The approved scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the agreed programme 

Reason 

To secure the stated bio diversity enhancements 

7. No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme 
must include: 

(i)   An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice 
Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation shall include 
evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for infiltration of surface 
water; 

(ii)  A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning authority (if 
it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); and 

(iii) A timetable for its implementation. 

The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement 
national standards. 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the 
approved drainage scheme. 

 

 

Page 16 of 29

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



 

Reason 

To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of 
flooding and pollution. 

8. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution 

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

• Please be aware of the Safe Dig service from United Utilities by contacting United 
Utilities at; UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk 

 

   

  

  

  

  

Page 17 of 29

Page 57

Agenda Item 9

mailto:UUSafeDig@uuplc.co.uk


West Point House

2

5

S

I

L

L

O

T

H

 

C

R

E

S

C

E

N

T

1

7

1

6

2

6

2

4

2

2

7

3

7

1

1

S

O

L

W

A

Y

 

D

R

I

V

E

1

8

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2020. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Location Plan  Scale: 1.1250

West Point House

N

Architecture
and Design

P.01

Scale: 1/1250 @ A4

Date: 21/09/2020

07552 628060
ednewcome@hotmail.com

www.enarchitectureand
design.com

All dimensions to be checked on site. Do not scale. This drawing should be read in conjunction with all

relevant consultants and/or specialists drawings/documents and any discrepancies or variations are to

be notified to the architects before work commences. The workmanship of all relevant trades and

building operations shall comply with the recommendations of British Standard (BS) 8000 parts 1-15

inclusive. All design and construction is to be in accordance with the Construction, Design and

management Regulations 2015.

Title

Project: West Point House

Location Plan

Client: 

Address: Solway Drive, Barrow in
Furness, LA14 3XN

Drawn:  EN

REV: B

Notes:

0 2010 30 40

2020/0440

Page 18 of 29

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



West Point House

2
5

1
7

2
7

1
1

S
O

L
W

A
Y

 
D

R
I
V

E

3m radius kerb

entrance splay

Loose aggregate hard standing or

similar permeable parking surface

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2020. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Site Plan  Scale: 1.500

N

Architecture

and Design

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
:
 
W

e
s
t
 
P

o
i
n
t
 
H

o
u
s
e

Title:

Site Plan

Drawing No: P.02

Date: 28/10/2020

Rev: C

Notes:

D
r
a
w

n
:
 
 
E

N

07552 628060

ednewcome@hotmail.com

www.enarchitectureand

design.com

All dimensions to be checked on site. Do

not scale. This drawing should be read in

conjunction with all relevant consultants

and/or specialists drawings/documents and

any discrepancies or variations are to be

notified to the architects before work

commences.

The workmanship of all relevant trades and

building operations shall comply with the

recommendations of British Standard (BS)

8000 parts 1-15 inclusive.

All design and construction is to be in

accordance with the Construction, Design

and management Regulations 2015.

C
l
i
e
n
t
:
 

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
:
 
W

a
l
n
e
y
 
I
s
l
a
n
d
,
 
B

a
r
r
o
w

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
/
5
0
0
 
@

 
A

4

0 2010 30

2020/0440

Page 19 of 29

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 9



B18/2020/0477 
Planning Committee  
17

th 
November 2020   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2020/0477 Date Valid :12/08/2020 

Address : 73 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD 

Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Proposed alterations and change of use to provide first and second floor living 
accommodation in association with ground floor take-away use.(retrospective) 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Cheung   Agent : Mr Cheung   

Statutory Date : 07/10/2020 
Recommendation : GRANTED WITH 
CONDITIONS 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 11 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 127 

Saved Local Plan Policies 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on 

Windfall Sites 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R1 - The Vision for Barrow and 

Dalton Town Centres 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R17 - Conversion of upper floors to 

residential units within the town centre 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R2 - Barrow Town Centre 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R3 - Barrow’s Primary Shopping 

Area 

Page 20 of 29

Page 60

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2020/0477


 

Summary of Main Issues 

The key issues are the principle of the change of use within this part of the town centre and 
the impact of the proposal on the amenity of the proposed residents and the general 
amenity of the area. 
 
Representations have been received concerning matters which are a material consideration 
for planning. 

Non Material Considerations 

Existing rubbish 
Standards of internal building works 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Cavendish Street 71, 74, 76, 79 81, 
Scott Street 94, 96 98, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 2 0 

Site notice displayed expiring on 13.9.20 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding: 
 
- congestion caused by takeaway delivery drivers 
- public vehicles accessing the highway 
- rubbish to the front and rear of property 
- noisy extract fan 
- increase in traffic 
- sub-standard internal building works.  

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
 

Page 21 of 29

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



 
 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 
 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 12/08/2020  

“Building regulation approval would be required for the works”. 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 13/08/2020  

"The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria 
County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have 
certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to 
take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 17/08/2020  

"I have consulted with the emergency planners who are responsible for the preparation of 
the off-site emergency plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public 
Information Regulations (REPPIR) 2019. They have provided adequate assurance that the 
proposed development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning 
arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development." 

  

  

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 29

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



 
  

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The host property is an end of terraced three storey building situated to the north of 
Cavendish Street.  It is set within the primary shopping area as designated by the local 
plan.  The locality of the site is a mixed use area and consists of several night time uses. 
The ground floor of the application site operates as a takeaway until 3am. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Proposed alterations and change of use to provide first and second floor living 
accommodation in association with ground floor take-away use.(retrospective) 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 1985/0118 71 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from retail to estate 
agency and office (transfer of business from 65 Forshaw Street) Refused 07/03/1985 
 
3.2 1990/0015 71 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from clothing shop 
A1 to insurance brokers and estate agents A2 Approved 15/02/1990 
 
3.3 45/2002/1022 71 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD Creation of 
new shop front Approved 13/11/2002 
 
3.4 84/2005/1071 71 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD 
Advertisement consent to display a projecting banner sign. Approved 17/08/2005 
 
3.5 B18/2009/1834 71 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD Installation 
of roller shutters. Appcond 10-DEC-2009 
 
3.6 B18/2010/0702 73 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD Installation 
of roller shutters to the rear elevation Appcond 28-JUN-2010 
 
3.7 B20/2018/0652 73 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1QD Change of 
use from a Sandwich shop (Use class A3) to a hot food takeaway (use class A5) 
APPCOND 04/12/2018 
 
3.8 B22/2016/0214 73 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD 
Advertisement Consent to display 1 no. fascia sign, 1 no. projecting sign and 1 no. hoarding 
sign. Appcond 13/06/2016 
 
3.9 B26/2016/0121 73 Cavendish Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1QD Application 
for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed use or development (CLOPUD) for the 
conversion of a Gift Shop (A1) to a Sandwich Shop (A3) Refused 09-MAY-2016 

 
 

Page 23 of 29

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



3.10 B20/2018/0652 73 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness - Change of use from a 
Sandwich shop 

3.11 (Use class A3) to a hot food takeaway (use class A5) APPCOND 04/12/2018 

4. Officers Assessment 

4.1 The key considerations for this proposal are standards of amenity for future occupiers of 
the proposed accommodation and the relevant local and national planning policies. 
 
Residential amenity  

4.2 When reviewing the submitted plans and the approved plans for the takeaway use 
(2018/0652), no separate external entrance is shown to access the flat above the 
takeaway.  An internal staircase is used to access the first and second floor.  This tallies 
with the application description and will only permit occupation by the operators of the 
takeaway. However, case law advises that the wording in a description cannot be enforced 
unless a condition is imposed with similar wording also. Given the access arrangements 
and location immediately above the take away the accommodation would not be suitable for 
general unrestricted occupation and a condition tying occupation to an employee or 
dependent of the take away is proposed.  

4.3 The first floor is laid out to provide a lounge and kitchen and the second floor is to 
provide 3 bedrooms and a bathroom.  The position of the sleeping area on the second floor 
should also assist in separation from potential disturbance from the ground floor use. 
 
4.4 Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) places importance on 
a high standard of amenity for occupiers.  In this instance, the floor area of the proposed 
accommodation provides in excess of minimum space standards over two floors.  Natural 
light and ventilation is provided to occupiers which also accords with local plan policy H7.  
Overall, a reasonable standard of amenity should result for any occupier linked to the take 
away. Given the take away is already in use, any impact from the associated residential use 
on neighbours or the locality is likely to be neutral. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 29

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



4.5 As part of the consultation process representations have been received concerning the 
application site raising a number of issues, some of which are material to planning.  A 
concern was raised relating to the extraction equipment on site being noisy.  Following 
consultation with colleagues in Public Protection they have advised that the extract fan 
does not currently meet with conditions attached to the permission for the hot food 
takeaway (2018/0652).  This has been highlighted to the applicant.  My colleague advised 
that the extraction equipment should be serviced which should be sufficient to resolve the 
matter. However, your officers will continue to monitor this and take action as required. 
Traffic as a result of the takeaway use has also been highlighted as an issue in the 
representation. However, the take away use is already authorised  and cannot be re-
considered as part of this application. Cavendish Street is a busy part of the primary 
shopping area in town and with this comes an existing level of traffic in the locality.  
Relevant parking restrictions are in place and enforced by the Highways Authority.  There 
should be minimal additional impact from the proposed use of the upper floors of the site on 
parking levels.  The host property is within a sustainable location with access to public 
transport nearby. 
 
4.6 Concerns were also raised regarding the standard of building work within the application 
site and following discussions with a colleague in Building Control they have confirmed that 
they have and will monitor works undertaken on site.  They also advised that as part of the 
takeaway conversion the applicant was required under the Building Regulations to install 
soundproofing between the ground and first floor.  
 
4.7 Reference is made to rubbish to both the front and rear of the site.  When visiting the site 
on two separate occasions your officer saw no evidence of this. However, the concern has 
been passed onto our street care team to monitor and take action if necessary.  The area to 
the front of the site is cleaned every week day.  The application form states that the existing 
refuse provision will serve the residential accommodation.  These bins are stored in the 
back street. 
 
4.8 Town Centre Policy Local plan policy R1 states that proposals should support the Local 
Plan vision for those areas.  In Barrow this includes continuing to support a mix, variety and 
flexibility of uses whilst protecting the amenity of residents.  Policy R17 specifically refers to 
the conversion of upper floors to residential and advises this will be permitted where the site 
is capable of providing an acceptable level of residential amenity and access to future 
occupiers.  In this instance, the existing soundproofing in place, generous size of the 
residential unit and separation between sleeping areas should assist in this regard.  Once 
the issue with the fan is resolved there should be an acceptable standard of residential 
amenity to the operators of the takeaway below from the proposal.  As the application 
site is to be in single occupancy throughout all three floors it is in the applicant's interest to 
remedy the concern with the fan. 

 

 

 

 

Page 25 of 29

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



5.Conclusions 

The proposed development accords with both local and national planning policies and is 
therefore considered sustainable development.  There should be minimal impact from the 
change of use proposed. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions : - 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 12.8.2020 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this consent: 
 
Application form dated 4.8.2020 
73 CS/1 and 73 CS/2 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
2. The occupation of the first and second floors of the property to which this consent refers 
shall be limited to a person solely or mainly employed in the hot food takeaway use 
operating on the ground floor of the property, or any resident dependents. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development hereby approved is only limited in occupancy to the 
operators of the ground floor use due to no separate access being provided. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   
 
 
 

Page 26 of 29

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



 The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area 
of the BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the 
Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency 
Planning office to allow for further discussion of available information: Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire 
& Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 

 

 

  

  

Page 27 of 29

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



2020/0477

Page 28 of 29

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 9



2020/0477

Page 29 of 29

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9



 
 
Appendices of Policies 

 
 
Note to Members 

 
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 
agenda today. 

 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 

 
 
NPPF-011 
Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their  
 area, and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change; 
 
 
b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 
housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring 
areas (As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27), 
unless: 

 
 
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution 
of development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework 
(rather than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed 
in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage 
Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of 
archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal 
change); or 

 
 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 
 
For decision-taking this means: 

 
 
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 

 
 
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications 
involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 

Page 70

Agenda Item 9



demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, 
as set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the 
delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement 
over the previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test 
are set out in Annex 1), granting permission unless: 

 
 
i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies 
referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating 
to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area  
of Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or 
defined as Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other 
heritage assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of 
flooding or coastal change); or 

 
 
 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 
 
NPPF-127 
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 

 
 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development; 

 
 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 
effective landscaping; 

 
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change (such as increased densities); 

 
 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 
places to live, work and visit; 

 
 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 
facilities and transport networks; and 

 
 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 
policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 
for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 
such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 
cohesion and resilience.  

 
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 

 
 
Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where: 

 
 
a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing 
the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability; 

 
 
b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated 
sites and the historic environment; 

 
 
c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in 
conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced; 

 
 
d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering 
works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to 
protect existing investment; 

 
 
e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 
landscape character of the site respected and reinforced; 

 
 
f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced; 

 
 
g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural 
landscape character; and 

 
 
h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast. 

 
 
Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where 
the above criteria can be met. 

 
 
Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible. 

 
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



 
 
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 
environmental gains for the Borough. 

 
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

 
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 

 
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

 
 
 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 

 
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 
facilities; 

 
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 

 
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 
infrastructure; 

 
 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

 
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

 
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 
environmental assets; 

 
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 

 
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 

 
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 

 
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 

 
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 

 
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 
Plan objectives by alternative means. 

 
 
Policy DS5 - Design 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 
 
 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning  

 
Documents; 

 
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 

Page 74

Agenda Item 9



 
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 

 
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 

 
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

 
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 
structured building layout; 

 
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 

 
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 
sourced wherever possible; 

 
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 

 
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 
and public safety; 

 
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 

 
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities; 

 
 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 

 
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



 
 
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 

 
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 
provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
 
 
 
 
Policy EC11 - Self-catering Holiday Accommodation 
Proposals for new self catering holiday accommodation, or extensions of existing units, 
will be approved within the built-up area of Barrow and Dalton and the development 
cordons identified, providing the design, siting, layout and access are satisfactory. 
Conditions will be attached to any planning permission to ensure that letting is on a short 
term basis. 

 
 
In urban fringe or rural areas, proposals for the conversion of existing buildings to self 
catering accommodation will be approved where they meet all of the following criteria: 

 
 
a)    The building is structurally sound and capable of conversion without major 
rebuilding, extension or modification to the existing structure; 

 
 
b)    The building is served by a satisfactory access; 

 
 
c)    Services are readily available on site; 

 
 
d)    The buildings are well related to existing buildings or uses on the site where 
appropriate; 

 
 
e)    The number of units is appropriate to its surroundings; 

 
 
f)    The proposal will not have an adverse impact on local amenities by virtue of 
noise and disturbance; and 

 
 
g)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 

 
 
New build self-catering holiday accommodation within urban fringe or rural areas will be 
accepted where it meets criteria b-g above.

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



 
 
Policy EC9 - Caravan and Camping Sites 
Touring caravan and camping sites and proposals for permanent caravan sites will be 
permitted provided that they meet all of the following criteria: 

 
 
a)    Suitable access is available from primary or district distributor roads; 

 
 
b)    The proposal would not result in unacceptable nuisance to sensitive 
neighbouring uses in terms of noise or traffic; 

 
 
c)    Sites are connected to the mains foul sewer where practicable. Where it is 
demonstrated that this is not practicable then an appropriate non-mains drainage 
treatment system must be provided; 

 
 
d)    The area is not at risk of flooding; 

 
 
e)    Proposals for permanent caravan sites will be expected to include on-site 
facilities providing clean water, a sanitary disposal unit and adequate fire  protection 
equipment; 

 
 
f)    Any ancillary buildings, such as shower blocks, toilets or reception buildings are 
sensitively located within the site and are of an appropriate design, scale and 
materials; and 

 
 
g)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan. 

 
 
 
Policy GI2 - Green Wedges 
Proposals within or adjoining designated Green Wedges will be supported providing that 
they: 

 
 
 
a)    Provide visual relief, physical contrast and visual or physical separation between 
settlements and neighbouring development  areas; 

 
 
b)    Demonstrate how development would respond to, maintain or enhance the open 
character of the Green Wedge; 

 
 
c)    Enhance the biodiversity value of Green Wedges, where possible; 

 
 
d)    Maintain or enhance its value as a setting for recreation; and

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
e)    Protect the setting of heritage assets. 

 
 
 
Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites 
Applications for residential development will be permitted where they satisfy all of the 
following criteria: 

 
 
a)    The site is located within or adjoining the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or 
within a development cordon identified in Policy H4; 

 
 
b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 

 
 
c)    Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing, 
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character , 
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area; 

 
 
d)    An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in 
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation; 

 
 
e)    The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the 
highway network; 

 
 
f)    The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public 
transport, as opposed to the private car; 

 
 
g)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, 
drainage, waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding; 

 
 
h)    The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is 
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development; 

 
 
i)    Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to 
provide for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f); 

 
 
j)    Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the 
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the 
housing is proposed;

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
k)    Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be 
required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape 
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable 
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence 
of settlements; 

 
 
l)    The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting; 

 
 
m)    There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of 
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the 
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and 

 
 
n)    The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in 
the Development Strategy chapter should be followed. 

 
 
The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible. 

 
 
 
Policy R1 - The Vision for Barrow and Dalton Town Centres 
Proposals for development or alterations within Barrow and Dalton town centres must 
support the Local Plan Vision for those areas. 

 
 
 
 
 
Policy R17 - Conversion of upper floors to residential units within the town centre 
The conversion of upper floors to residential use will be permitted where this will assist 
the regeneration of the area and will bring back vacant properties into use subject to the 
site being capable of providing an acceptable level of residential amenity and access for 
future occupiers. Any external alteration, such as the addition of front doors etc, must 
not harm the character and appearance of the town centre. 

 
 
Developments that rely solely on access from a back street will not be permitted unless 
the scheme provides for suitable upgrading of the back street. 

 
 
 
Policy R2 - Barrow Town Centre 
For the purposes of interpreting the relevant policies in this chapter, Barrow's Town 
Centre is identified in Appendix I.

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy R3 - Barrow’s Primary Shopping Area 
The Primary Shopping Area is the focus for retail uses in Barrow. It's boundaries are 
shown in Appendix I. Proposals for other main town centre uses (i.e. not A1) will be 
supported within the defined primary shopping area, provided that: 

 
 
a) The proposal complements the retail function and makes a positive contribution to the 
vitality, viability and diversity of the town centre, in terms of maintaining active 
continuous retail frontages, signage and hours of opening; 

 
 
b) The proposal would not give rise, either alone or cumulatively, to a detrimental effect 
on the character and amenity of the primary shopping area, or cause an unacceptable 
harm to the amenity of town centre residents; and 

 
 
c) The proposal will not have an unacceptable impact upon the local highway network 
and acceptable levels of parking are available nearby. 

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

17th November 2020 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2020/0440 West Point House, 
Solway Drive, Barrow-
in-Furness  

Installation of 8 camping pods and creation of 
associated vehicle parking area 
 

19 2020/0477 73 Cavendish Street, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Proposed alterations and change of use to provide 
first and second floor living accommodation in 
association with ground floor take-away 
use.(retrospective) 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
Book 2  

 
17th November 2020 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen,  

 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or 
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later than 
12 noon, three working days before the date of the Planning Committee meeting.  
Information on how to make the application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s 
website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Planning Business Support Team 
at consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 01229 876405.. 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Development Services Manager 
(Planning and Enforcement) 

 

Page 1 of 27

Page 83

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:consultplanning@barrowbc.gov.uk


B10/2020/0563 
Planning Committee  
17th November 2020  

  

  
Application Number : B10/2020/0563 Date Valid :14/09/2020 

Address : Home Bargains, Walney Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 5UN Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Refurbishment of retail units (Class E) to facilitate amalgamation of Units A 
and B, comprising external alterations, including new shop front and customer entrance 
feature, trolley park, revised car parking, plant area and associated works 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Dave Little, T J Morris 
Limited, c/o Agent  Agent : Mr Tim Rainbird, Quod  

Statutory Date : 14/12/2020 
Recommendation : Permission be 
Refused (unless satisfactory amended 
plans are received for the frontage). 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R4 - Sequential test for new retail 

developments in Barrow 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy R8 - Impact Assessments – Retail in 

Barrow 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues are the acceptability of the proposals on policy grounds and whether the 
external works are appropriate in design terms. 

 

Page 2 of 27

Page 84

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B10/2020/0563


 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice and publicised on the website. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
1-3 Strand Fulcrum Pipelines Limited, 
Chatsworth Street 97, 99, A and B Services, 
Walney Road Argos Extra, Asda Stores Ltd, Matalan, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 16/09/2020  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals” 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 27

Page 85

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 17/09/2020  

"Our response is the following: 

The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria 
County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have 
certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to 
take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Highways Cumbria County Council 05/10/2020  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 
It is noted that there is no net change in the impermeable area being drained.  This 
combined with the minor nature of the works in the context of the site, it is considered that 
the proposal will not increase the flood risk on the site or elsewhere. 
Although there will be a loss of some 6 car park spaces, the proposed larger spaces ( as 
recommended in the CDDG) of 5m x 2.5m are much more user friendly and can actually be 
more space efficient as larger cars do not occupy more than one space meaning that all 88 
spaces should be available.  The proposed allocation of 6 accessible spaces is in line with 
recommended ratio.  We also welcome the inclusion of electric car charging stations and 
the retention of the cycle parking.  Overall the changes are minor and it is considered these 
will not have a material effect on the highway. 
 
I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority  and Lead Local Flood Authority have no 
objection to the proposal." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 27

Page 86

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 05/10/2020  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 
It is noted that there is no net change in the impermeable area being drained.  This 
combined with the minor nature of the works in the context of the site, it is considered that 
the proposal will not increase the flood risk on the site or elsewhere. 
Although there will be a loss of some 6 car park spaces, the proposed larger spaces ( as 
recommended in the CDDG) of 5m x 2.5m are much more user friendly and can actually be 
more space efficient as larger cars do not occupy more than one space meaning that all 88 
spaces should be available.  The proposed allocation of 6 accessible spaces is in line with 
recommended ratio.  We also welcome the inclusion of electric car charging stations and 
the retention of the cycle parking.  Overall the changes are minor and it is considered these 
will not have a material effect on the highway. 
 
I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority  and Lead Local Flood Authority have no 
objection to the proposal." 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 30/09/2020  

"I have consulted with the emergency planners who are responsible for the preparation of 
the off-site emergency plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public 
Information Regulations (REPPIR) 2019. They have provided adequate assurance that the 
proposed development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning 
arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development." 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 This application relates to two retail units within a terrace of three on Walney Road Retail 
Park, namely unit A currently occupied by Poundstretcher and Unit B occupied by Home 
Bargains, the other unit in the block is occupied by Argos, although excluded from this 
application. The application also includes the car park in front of the units (immediately to 
the west).The host building occupies a visible and prominent position adjacent to Walney 
Road (A590) and the retail park includes Matalan and Stollers to the north east and Asda to 
the north. There are some residential properties beyond Argos to the west and a mixture of 
commercial premises and lock-up garages on Chatsworth Street to the south east. 

 

 

Page 5 of 27

Page 87

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

1.2 The site comprises a modern purpose-built retail warehouse which was constructed in 
2008 following severe fire damage to the original building. It consists of a low brick plinth 
wall with cladding above and glazed entrance features with profiled metal sheeting roofs. 
The retail unit is currently sub-divided into three terraced units with a shared car park with 
93 spaces to the front of the site and a shared servicing area to the rear, accessed via a 
driveway to the east; the total site area measures 1.21 hectares. Although currently 
occupied by three individual traders the existing building has a commonality of design with 
each trader having the same entrance feature and a similar size of signage. Elsewhere 
within the retail park, no one unit seeks to dominate the other in terms of entrance features 
or signage with each having a design and scale of frontage and fascias in keeping with their 
host building. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal relates to the refurbishment of the retail units(Class E) to facilitate the 
amalgamation of Units A and B, comprising external alterations, including new shop front 
and customer entrance feature, trolley park, revised car parking, plant area and associated 
works. The works relate to a comprehensive refurbishment package which will enable the 
amalgamation of units A and B following the Poundstretcher's Company Voluntary 
Agreement. This will result in the upsizing of the Home Bargains store. 

2.2 External alterations include: 

the provision of a new shopfront with automatic doors. The proposed plans show a new 
signage tower which will allow a roof to be provided over a new entrance and exit door and 
trolley store. The proposed signage tower has an overall width of approximately 19.5m, 
height of 11.7m and depth of 4m.   

2.3 removal of the existing shopfronts and infilling in matching materials 

2.4 the provision of external security shutters to all glazed areas 

2.5 replacement of existing fire doors 

2.6 lowering of the signage fascia and removal of the existing canopy to units A and B and 
re-cladding as required 

2.7 removal of loading shutter doors and infilling in matching materials 

2.8 provision of new double loading doors 

2.9 modification of service doors 

2.10 removal of external rear plant area and installation of replacement  

 

Page 6 of 27

Page 88

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

2.11 In addition, some minor changes to the car park layout are proposed which will result in 
an overall reduction of 5 car parking spaces (88 in total), although more useful wider 
spaces are proposed. 6 electric vehicle charging points are proposed and cycle parking will 
remain as existing and re-surfacing and  kerb re-alignment is also included. 

2.12 The resultant proposed floorspace of combined units A and B will be 1806 sqm. (The 
existing 409sqm mezzanine in Unit A is to be removed). 

Background 

2.13 The units in this block have a somewhat interesting planning history: 

2.14 In 1979 an outline consent was granted for the erection of a 30,000 sq ft retail 
warehouse and conditions 3 and 4 of that consent sought to limit the range of goods that 
could be sold, broadly speaking  bulky goods. However, there is some doubt as to whether 
that consent was ever implemented and no reserved matters applications were received. 
Later, two 1980 full permissions were granted for the erection of a retail furniture 
warehouses, both on the same date; one of those consents limited the sale of goods to 
bulky goods and prohibited the sale of food. 

2.15 There was a fire at the premises in 2006 which necessitated the repair and 
refurbishment of the units and subsequent consents were approved in 2007  and 2008 for 
refurbishment and sub-division of the premises from 2 into 3 units. No conditions were 
attached to either of the 2007 or 2008 permissions to restrict the use of the units, with the 
case officer  taking the view at the time that since the works related to  refurbishment the 
previous condition would be carried forward, even though three separate planning units with 
three separate entrances were being created. Subsequent legal advice confirmed that the 
original planning consent (and a 1986 revision) could not be applied to the sub-division of 
the units. 

2.16 The 2007 and 2008 refurbishment and sub-division permissions referred in the 
description to the sub-division of the units for the retail of "bulky goods", however the 
limitations of the description can only be enforced if expressly contained within a condition. 
Since conditions were not imposed it was held that the units were free-standing with no 
restriction on retail sales, following first use for bulky goods. In any event, the wording  of 
"bulky goods" within the description was considered to be  too imprecise to enforce. 

2.17 A certificate of lawfulness application under 2008/1491 was refused for the use of the 
units for any purpose within the (then) A1 use class on the  basis that Unit B had not first 
been used for the sale of bulky goods (in accordance with the description on either planning 
permissions 2007/0745 or 2008/0260-the refurbishment works). 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 27

Page 89

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

2.18 A certificate of lawfulness was issued in 2008 for unit A(2008/0918) allowing 
unrestricted use for any purpose within the then A1 use class and for unit C (2008/0916).A 
similar application for Unit B(2008/0917) was refused on the basis that this unit  had not 
initially been used for the sale of bulky goods. An appeal was lodged but later withdrawn(at 
that time units A and C had been used for the sale of bulky goods: Allied Carpets and MFI 
but Unit B had not). 

2.19 In addition, a  2008 application (2008/1644) related to the creation of 600 square 
metres of mezzanine floorspace within unit B. This was approved in February 2009 and 
condition 3 restricted the mezzanine floorspace to only storage space ancillary to the 
primary use. Condition 4 required that if the primary use of Unit B ceased, use of the 
mezzanine floorspace should also  cease and Condition 5 prevented the further creation of 
additional mezzanine floorspace within Unit B. However, these conditions are considered to 
have been superseded by the later certificate of lawfulness and change of use applications 
referred to below, which related to the use of the whole unit (not just non-mezzanine 
space). There appear to be no restrictions on the provision of mezzanine floorspace within 
Units A and C, other than the limitations set within the Procedure Order. 

2.20 In order to bring Unit B under the same terms as units A and C, in 2009, a certificate of 
lawfulness application (2009/1050) for the use of Unit B for any purpose within the A1 use 
class once it had been used for the retail of bulky goods was approved on 5th  August 2009 
and also in  2009, presumably as a belt and braces approach,  a subsequent change of use 
application was submitted and approved on 17th August  2009 for the change of use of 
retail from bulky goods to unrestricted A1 use. 

2.21 The combination of the lawful development certificates and change of use planning 
permission means that all three units now have unrestricted consents for the sale of goods 
within the old A1 Use Class. now Class E. 

2.22 The amalgamation of any of the units  is not restricted through any historic planning 
conditions or legal agreements. 

2.23 The current application seeks to refurbish the units and amalgamate units A and B, unit 
C would be retained by Argos. In my view, as before, this would create 2 distinct planning 
units within the same building, a new combined unit A and B, and Unit C and similarly 
any previous planning conditions cannot be assumed to be carried forward unless 
specifically re-imposed. The consideration of appropriate conditions for the new  unit (as a 
result of amalgamation)  is set out below. 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 02/1991/0381 Land adjacent to the junction of Bath Street/Walney Road, Barrow-in-
Furness Siting of one chalet/mobile home Appcond 13/08/1991 
 
3.2  1979/0566 Land south of Asda, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Outline Planning 
Permission for erection of 30,000 square feet retail warehouse for M.F.I. Ltd Appcond 
06/09/1979 

Page 8 of 27

Page 90

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 
3.3 1979/1078 Land at Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of retail furniture 
warehouse Appcond 05/02/1980 
 
3.4 1979/1287 Land at Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of 45,333 square foot 
retail furniture warehouse, including additional mezzanine floor over showroom area for 
M.F.I. Furniture Centre Ltd Appcond 05/02/1980 
 
3.5 1980/0509 MFI Furniture Centre, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display 
advertisements for five non illuminated signs and six flag adverts APPCOND 22/05/1980 
 
3.6 1980/0616 Garages opposite 66-76 Chatsworth Street, Barrow-in-Furness Extension to 
existing garage premises Appcond 12/08/1980 
 
3.7 1980/0756 M.F.I. Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
Non-illuminated sign Appcond 07/10/1980 
 
3.8 1981/0313 Land to rear of M.F.I., off Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Outline Planning 
Permission - Development of land as an industrial estate for warehousing with access from 
Walney Road via M.F.I. - Remainder of site - 5.29 acres Appcond 01/12/1981 
 
3.9 1981/0957 Asda Stores Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Sprinkler pump house and 
storage tanks Appcond 01/12/1981 
 
3.10 1982/0508 Lock up garage, Bath Street, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from lock up 
garage to site for storage of building materials Refused 05/10/1982 
 
3.11 1984/0539 Land adjacent to The Bungalow, Bath Street, Barrow-in-Furness Conversion 
of garage area to builders yard and workshop Refused 15/08/1984 
 
3.12 1986/0253 MFI, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
Installation of seven wall mounted illuminated signs and retention of existing free-standing 
and flag signs Appcond 22/05/1986 
 
3.13 1986/0298 MFI, Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Variation of previous conditional 
approval No. 79/0566 to allow the retail of an extended range of goods Appcond 
19/06/1986 
 
3.14 1988/0521 Land north of Chatsworth Street, Barrow-in-Furness Erection of a non-food 
retail warehouse, garden centre and associated car parking Refused 21/07/1988 
 
3.15 1988/0680 M.F.I. Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness Consent to display advertisements - 
enlarged illuminated sign Appcond 02/09/1988 
 
3.16 46/2006/0928 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Erection of canopies to re-located trolley bays, upgraded cycle parking, adjustment to traffic 
islands, and hard surfacing of specified grassed areas to parking. Appcond 25/08/2006 

Page 9 of 27

Page 91

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
3.17 46/2007/0278 M F I Furniture Centre & Allied Carpets Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5UU Following fire damage, works to refurbish the existing building including 
new cladding together with alterations to front and rear elevations for new entrances. 
Appcond 12/04/2007 
 
3.18 46/2007/0745 MFI Furniture Centre & Allied Carpets Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5UU Works to refurbish fire damaged retail unit, including sub-division to 
three units from two for the retail of bulky goods, external works to include new cladding, 
and alterations to front and rear elevations to form new entrances Appcond 12/07/2007 
 
3.19 47/1992/0686 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Erection of petrol station kiosk Approved 16/11/1992 
 
3.20 50/2000/0521 Land at junction of Bath Street/ Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Erection of workshop and office accommodation (Retrospective) Refused 
22/11/2000 
 
3.21 57/1992/0310 Land at Chatsworth Street Barrow-In-Furness Cumbria Erection of office 
block and toilet facilities and fencing along Chatsworth Street frontage Appcond 02/07/1992 
 
3.22 57/2006/0895 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Installation of roof top plant and access stairs. Appcond 23/08/2006 
 
3.23 68/1997/0197 Land At The Junction Of Bath Street and Walney Road Barrow-in-
Furness Wood reprocessing yard, including the erection of a storage building. Appcond 
21/05/1997 
 
3.24 83/1993/0650 Matalan Discount Club Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Illuminated 
signs on building eleavtion Appcond 09/11/1993 
 
3.25 83/1993/0683 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Adevrtisement consent 
for erection of illuminated store sign freestanding sign and petrol sign Appcond 12/11/1993 
 
3.26 83/1994/0213 M F I Furniture Centre Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Display of 
illuminated shop signage. Appcond 22/04/1994 
 
3.27 83/1997/1084 MFI Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Display of externally illuminated 
advertisement signs. Appcond 06/01/1998 
 
3.28 83/2004/0973 M F I Furniture Centre Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA14 5UU Erection of illuminated elevation signs and freestanding signs Appcond 
11/10/2004 
 
3.29 83/2006/1027 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Advertisement Consent for the display of totem sign at Holker Street entrance, internally 
illuminated name signs on main building and various directional signs in car park. Appcond 
25/09/2006 

Page 10 of 27

Page 92

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
3.30 84/1992/0194 Corner Of Bath Street And Walney Road Barrow-In-Furness Cumbria 
Erection of non-illuminated hoarding Approved 10/06/1992 
 
3.31 84/1997/0560 Land At Walney Road/ Bath Street Barrow-in-Furness Display of two 48 
sheet advertising hoardings (Retrospective) Appcond 06/08/1997 
 
3.32 84/2006/0681 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Advertisement Consent to display eight 24hr signs. Appcond 11/07/2006 
 
3.33 B16/2008/1644 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Creation of 600 
square metres of floor space at mezzanine level for retail storage purposes Appcond 
09/02/2009 
 
3.34 B18/2008/0081 MFI Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Installation of external 
heating and air conditioning plant in the rear goods yard area. Appcond 07/05/2008 
 
3.35 B18/2013/0596 Retail Park Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Replacement of 
grassed area with bitumen macadam hardstanding to service yard. Appcond 31-OCT-2013 
 
3.36 B18/2017/0764 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Over cladding of an existing ASDA store. Panels to be painted grey and new feature of 
powder coated aluminium cladding in green (RAL 6018) and dark grey (RAL 7016) 
APPCOND 22/02/2018 
 
3.37 B20/2009/1130 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Change of use of 
retail unit from the sale of bulky goods only to unrestricted class A1 retail use. Approved 17-
AUG-2009 
 
3.38 B21/2014/0691 The Bungalow Bath Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5TR 
Proposed re-model of existing bungalow, add a front bedroom, rear kitchen extension and 
two bedrooms, and provide a new roof. Appcond 17-NOV-2014 
 
3.39 B22/2008/0068 Allied Carpets Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN 
Advertisement Consent to display 1No. internally illuminated flex face box sign and 1 No. 
internally illuminated flex face welcome sign to the front elevation and an internally non- 
illuminated 'goods in sign' to the rear elevation Appcond 10/03/2008 
 
3.40 B22/2008/0077 MFI/Allied Carpets Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 
5UN Advertisement Consent to display a totem sign externally illuminated by ground 
mounted floodlights. Appcond 10/03/2008 
 
3.41 B22/2008/0225 MFI Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Advertisement Consent 
to display 1No. internally illuminated fascia sign to the front elevation and 1No. internally 
illuminated fascia sign to the side elevation Appcond 16/04/2008 

 

Page 11 of 27

Page 93

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 
 
3.42 B22/2008/0343 Allied Carpets Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN 
Advertisement Consent to display 1No. illuminated fascia sign and 1No. illuminated side 
sign, 1No. 'Welcome' illuminated entrance sign and 1No.small 'goods in' sign to the rear 
elevation Appcond 28/04/2008 
 
3.43 B22/2009/0433 Unit C Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UU 
Advertisement Consent to display various illuminated and non-illuminated signs. Appcond 
05-JUN-2009 
 
3.44 B22/2010/0547 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Display of two 
illuminated advertisements to front elevation Appcond 03-JUN-2010 
 
3.45 B22/2010/1647 Argos Extra Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN 
Advertisement consent for two illuminated signs. Appcond 10-JAN-2011 
 
3.46 B22/2011/0684 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Advertisement Consent to display four, free standing car park banner signs with supporting 
frames. Appcond 14-NOV-2011 
 
3.47 B22/2013/0256 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Advertisement consent to display 10 signs as part of 'click and collect' facility Appcond 21-
MAY-2013 
 
3.48 B22/2018/0005 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Advertisement consent to include 12 new signs, 4 of which are replacement signs. 
APPCOND 27/02/2018 
 
3.49 B22/2019/0459 Advertisement Hoarding, Walney Road/Bath Street, Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria Advertisement consent to display a replacement of 1 no. 48 sheet poster display 
and 1no. 96 sheet poster display with 2 no. single-sided 48 sheet internally illuminated 
digital displays and associated logo boxes. APPCOND 22/07/2019 
 
3.50B26/2008/0916 Unit C Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN Application 
for Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use of unit for any purpose within the Class (A1) 
Approved 09/02/2009 
 
3.51 B26/2008/0917 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Application for 
Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use of unit for any purpose within the Class (A1) 
Refused 09/02/2009 
 
3.52 B26/2008/0918 Unit A Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN Application 
for Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use of unit for any purpose within the Class (A1) 
Approved 09/02/2009 

 

Page 12 of 27

Page 94

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
3.53 B26/2008/1491 Unit A, B & C Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UN 
Application for Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use of units for any purpose within the 
Class (A1) Refused 09/02/2009 
 
3.54 B26/2008/1563 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UU Application 
for a Certificate of Lawfulness for a Class A1 - Retail Sales selling the range of goods 
included in the attached catalogue directly to the public Refused 09/02/2009 
 
3.55B26/2009/1050 Unit B Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Application for 
Certificate of Lawfulness for proposed use of retail unit for any retail purpose within the Use 
Class (A1) once it has been used for the retail of bulky goods (resubmission of 2008/0917) 
Approved 05-AUG-2009 
 
3.56 B28/2008/0260 Former MFI & Allied Carpet Units Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA14 5UN Works to refurbish fire damaged retail unit, including sub-division to 
three units from two for the retail of bulky goods, external works to include new cladding, 
and alterations to front and rear elevations to form new entrances with a variation of Con 
Appcond 09/04/2008 
 
3.57 BCO/2018/0063 Asda Stores Ltd Walney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UG 
Application for a minor variation to a premises or club certificate (Licensing Act 2003) to 
allow for internal alterations to store layout NO COMMENT 05/02/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1  While planning applications still need to be determined in accordance with policies in 
the  development plan, which are set out in this report, the NPPF is a material consideration 
in the assessment of this application. The NPPF advises that there is a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development and that development which is sustainable should be 
approved.  

4.2 Paragraph 86 states that local planning authorities should apply the sequential test for 
main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre and are not in accordance with an 
up-to-date Local Plan. The requirement is for retail development to first be located in town 
centres, then in edge of centre locations and only if suitable sites are not available should 
out of centre sites be considered. When considering edge of centre and out of centre 
proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to the 
town centre. 

4.3 Paragraph 89 states that applications for retail developments outside of town centres, 
which are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan, local planning authorities should 
require an impact assessment if the development is over a proportionate, locally set 
floorspace threshold (if there is no locally set threshold, the default threshold is 2,500 sq m). 
Advice is given in the NPPF as to the content of the assessment. 

Page 13 of 27

Page 95

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

4.4 Chapter  7 of the NPPF is titled ‘Ensuring the vitality of town centres’. Paragraph 85 
states that planning policies and decisions should support the role that town centres play at 
the heart of local communities.  

4.5 The Framework aims to encourage sustainable economic development and Paragraph 
80 advises that planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which 
businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need 
to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs 
and wider opportunities for development. 

4.6  In terms of design, Chapter 12 relates to "Achieving well designed places" and 
Paagraph 124 advises: "The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to 
what the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect 
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities." Paragraph 12 7 advises that planning decisions 
should ensure that developments are visually attractive as a result of good architecture and 
Paragraph 128 advises: "Design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and 
assessment of individual proposals." 

4.7 Paragraph 130 states: "Permission should be refused for development of poor design 
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an 
area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides 
in plans or supplementary planning documents “and Paragraph 132 advises: "The quality 
and character of places can suffer when advertisements are poorly sited and designed". 

Local Plan Policies 

4.8 Relevant policies relate to sustainable development (DS1 and 2) and design (DS5). 

4.9 Policy R4 follows national advice in relation to the town centre first approach in requiring 
a sequential test for new retail development outside of the primary shopping area. 

4.10 Policy R8 requires an impact assessment for development which creates new retail 
floorspace over 1000sq.m. gross (including conversions) outside of the Primary Shopping 
Area, including applications to remove goods restriction conditions.  

4.11 The Council's Shop Front & Advertisement Design SPD  is also a material 
consideration. 

Amalgamation of units 

4.12 Section 55(2) of the Act (as amended) states: ‘The following operations or uses of land 
shall not be taken for the purposes of this Act to involve the development of the land – (a) 
the carrying out for the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of any building of 
works which - (i) affect only the interior of the building (my emphasis) , or (ii) do not 
materially affect the external appearance of the building..’  

Page 14 of 27

Page 96

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=3974


 

4.13 However, appeal decisions have concluded that where works include external 
operations and internal operations together, as in the amalgamation of two previous retail 
units into one, the internal works are not exempt from being development requiring planning 
permission under S.55(2) since one is reliant on the other. The internal works on their own 
do not  require planning permission, but they are integral to the overall scheme, being 
functionally dependent on the external works and vice versa,  and so cannot be considered 
in isolation. The overall scheme involves  both external and internal changes and 
requires planning permission and is brought before Members as a Major application 

Fall-back position 

4.14 However, as set out above the amalgamation of units A and B is not restricted through 
any historic planning conditions or legal agreements and so amalgamation of the units 
without external works would not require planning permission in its own right and this would 
be the fall-back position. The old Planning for Town Centres – A Practice Guide on Need, 
Impact and the Sequential Approach helpfully explains :"There is a difference between a 
purely ‘hypothetical’ fall back position, and a position which actually could be implemented. 
If there is a realistic prospect that the fall back position would be brought forward, then it 
would be appropriate to attach significant weight to it in judging the impact of the proposal 
in question.” Given that Home Bargains already operate Unit A, their likelihood of being 
able to expand into Unit B seems realistic and fairly easy to implement  , more so say than 
a new retailer taking on a combined unit A and B since they would have a choice of units 
elsewhere to consider. Local Plan policies do not restrict the amalgamation of retail units 
and it is considered that the amalgamation does not require planning consent in its own 
right, save for its requirement to implement the external works. 

Sequential test and impact assessment 

4.15 A sequential test has not been submitted with the application. Paragraph 86  of the 
NPPF states that local planning authorities should apply the sequential test for main town 
centre uses that are not in an existing centre and the Practice Guidance sets out a checklist 
that should be taken into account in determining whether a proposal complies with the 
sequential test. However, taking into account the need to consider suitability, availability 
and viability I feel that little is to be gained by requesting a sequential test in this instance 
since the outcome is unlikely to change and it would only delay the application 
unnecessarily.  

4.16 Home Bargains already operate a store in the town centre and in terms of suitability of a 
sequentially preferable  unit there is the likelihood that an alternative site would not include 
car parking. In addition, the viability argument is likely to mean re-locating the existing 
Home Bargains unit to a town centre unit, if one exists, would be undesirable; in this case 
the existing operator in Unit A simply wishes to expand into Unit B and  there would be 
obvious additional cost in them leaving this unit and re-locating to a sequentially preferable 
site of a similar size should one exist. In any event they already occupy a unit in the town 
centre so any sequential test would be of little help since they would be unlikely to wish to 
operate 2 town centre units. 

Page 15 of 27

Page 97

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

4.17 I have also taken into account  the ‘Dundee’ principle which emphasises the importance 
of the meaning of ‘suitable’ from the perspective of the applicant. ‘as clearly underlined by 
this Judgment. This case is material to the operation of the sequential approach. This is a 
decision of the Supreme Court (21 March 2012) and as such has currency in England and 
Wales, although it relates on an appeal by Tesco Stores Limited in Scotland. This appeal 
was lodged in relation to a planning permission granted to Asda and MacDonald Estates in 
Dundee.  Although focusing on the question of deficiency, the case considered the 
application of the sequential test and the meaning of ‘suitable’ in relation to need and 
alternative sites. It was held in the Judgment that ‘suitable’ means ‘suitable for the 
development proposed by the applicant’, subject to the qualification that flexibility and 
realism must be shown by developers. As such, I feel little is to be gained by requesting a 
sequential test in this case, particularly given the fact that the units can operate without 
restriction on the good sold. 

Retail Impact Assessment 

4.18 In addition, whilst Policy R8 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan requires a Retail Impact 
Assessment for any development which creates new retail floorspace over 1000 sq m 
gross(including conversions) outside of the Primary Shopping Area. I also feel that there is 
 no justification for requiring a Retail Impact Assessment to support this  application 
 because there is already in existence planning approval for unrestricted  retail floorspace 
 covering both units for a floor area in excess of that specified in the policy. Whilst a larger 
unit will result, which is a new planning unit, no new net retail floorspace will result. 

Existing town centre premises 

4.19 I am concerned that an expansion of the out of town premises could lead to the closure 
of the town centre Home Bargains on Dalton Road and have sought re-assurance from the 
applicants in relation to this. The agent has confirmed that the town centre store is to 
remain open. However, in my view the Council would have no powers to prevent closure 
through any sort of  legal agreement at this stage since this would be  unreasonable given 
the context and fall-back position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 27

Page 98

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Design 

4.20 External works relate to an alteration of the frontage as a result of the new entrance/exit 
arrangement as well as minor changes to some doors and cladding and the provision of an 
under cover trolley space.  Notwithstanding the fact that the unit is located within a retail 
park, all of the commercial premises within the wider retail park have frontages in scale with 
the host building and none have an excessive level of signage or seek to dominate. The 
existing unit is a single warehouse split into three (Home Bargains, Poundstretcher and 
Argos)with a commonality of design and signage which works well.Entrance features 
comprise three steel signage towers painted white incorporating signage of similar 
dimensions for each unit. The retained Argos entrance feature has an overall width of 
approximately 6.3m, incorporating a sign of 5.6m wide by 4.1m tall. In contrast, the 
proposed entrance feature tower for the new store has an overall width of approximately 
19.5m by 11.7m tall; the fascia is shown as 19.5m wide by 7.7m tall, projecting above the 
roof of the building and the indicative signage within the fascia is shown as 15m wide by 
4.84m tall, almost three times the width of the existing signage. Whilst signage would be 
covered under a separate advertisement consent application your officers have requested 
some modification to reduce the overall size of the proposed front entrance tower feature 
and  fascia and the provision of internal rather than external security shutters. It is 
considered that the proposal would be  excessive in scale and result in an overall 
unbalanced appearance, dominating the host building and being out of scale with the 
general approach on this retail park. There are many examples of Home Bargains stores 
elsewhere on similar retail parks that do not include this design, including their recent 
"flagship" stores and it is still hoped that the applicants  will demonstrate some flexibility 
rather than have the application refused. 

4.21 There is also concern that such a large fascia will also lead to pressure for  an 
excessive scale of advertisement in the future. As it stands this element of the proposals is 
considered to be unacceptable and to conflict with the design aims of the NPPF and Local 
Plan Policy DS5. The applicants were requested to reduce the size to be more in keeping 
with the adjacent and existing units however they have refused to make any amendments 
to the proposals.  Whilst your officers have tried to work in a positive and proactive way in 
making design suggestions no amendments have been forthcoming, leaving little option but 
to refuse the application on design grounds. Approving the submitted design could cause a 
precedent, encouraging other premises within the retail park to follow a similar approach 
and applications elsewhere would then be difficult to resist. The government have recently 
emphasised the importance of good design through the work of the Building Beautiful 
Commission, the national design guide and the emphasis in the White Paper and approval 
would go against this ethos. 

4.22 The future of the overgrown land to the rear of the site has also been queried and the 
applicants have committed to tidy it up. 

Planning unit and conditions 

4.23 If the applicants are to amend the plans to an acceptable design then a consideration of 
conditions will be required. 

Page 17 of 27

Page 99

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

4.24 As set out above, all of the units within this building can now operate selling an 
unrestricted range of goods under the former A1 use class, now the new Class E - 
Commercial, Business and Service Class. Class E(a) includes use for the display or retail 
sale of goods, other than hot food. The new Class E  introduced from 1 September 2020 
now groups retailing in with other commercial uses meaning a change of use from retail to 
another use within Class E would not require consent (including to financial and 
professional services, indoor sports, medical or health uses, a creche or day nursery or 
industrial or research process). 

4.25 However, the creation of a new planning unit  starts a new chapter in the planning 
history of the site and a  consideration of what conditions would be appropriate should now 
take place. National planning policy encourages a town centre first approach and planning 
authorities have sought to protect the vitality and viability of town centres through restricting 
the range of goods that can be sold in such out of town centre retail parks, generally 
restricting them to appropriately worded bulky goods only conditions.  

 4.26 Conditions need to meet a number of tests, including being reasonable and 
enforceable. Had a new stand-alone operator been seeking to take on the amalgamated   
unit then there may be more scope in the imposition of conditions, however in this case an 
existing operator is seeking to expand. In my view, it would be unreasonable and 
unenforceable to try and now apply a bulky goods only condition to a combined unit when 
one does not exist in relation to their operation in the existing unit and there are no existing 
conditions on either unit. In addition, whilst a previous condition sought to restrict the use of 
a mezzanine in Unit B to storage only that was superseded by a later consent. 

 4.27 It is generally accepted that internal works do not require planning consent, however  
Article 44 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015  details that this allowance does not include internal alterations of 
more than 200 square metres for buildings used for the retail sale of goods other than hot 
food. Therefore, permission would be required for the retail  use of a  mezzanine space 
above 200 square metres. No new mezzanine floorspace is proposed and the existing one 
in Unit A  is to be removed. I do not feel that it would be reasonable or necessary  to try and 
restrict this by condition and floorspace  beyond that permitted by the Procedure 
Order  would require consent in its own right.  

4.28 In my view the horse has bolted in this case and, should acceptable amended plans for 
the frontage be submitted,  it would also be  too late to try and restrict the range of goods 
sold. In addition, the units are already operating in an unrestricted way as Poundstretcher 
and Home Bargains, both of whom also have town centre units, so any impact on the town 
centre is likely to be negligible. There is the option to grant a personal consent to Home 
Bargains given their circumstances so that there could be some control over a subsequent 
user of the amalgamated units in order to safeguard the town centre. However, existing 
units in the town centre tend to be much smaller so it may be that there would not be a 
sequentially preferable site available in any event and the unit would simply be forced to 
then remain empty. Again, I do not think that a personal consent would be a reasonable 
approach. 

Page 18 of 27

Page 100

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

4.29 In addition, given that the change to the Use Classes only came in on 1st September 
2020, it seems unlikely that a condition preventing future permitted changes of use could be 
supported. 

4.30 However, should satisfactory amended plans be submitted before committee meet, a 
condition preventing future sub-division would be appropriate. This could safeguard the 
town centre by encouraging a prospective tenant of a smaller unit to consider smaller town 
centre units first. 

4.31 A condition in relation to the construction management of the car park would also 
be  considered appropriate as would the use of matching materials for any external works 
and a time frame for installation of the electric vehicle charging points. 

car parking and highway issues 

4.32 The overall loss of 6 car parking spaces is considered to be negligible in this instance, 
particularly since there is additional car parking immediately adjacent in the Asda, Stollers 
and Matalan areas of the retail park. Furthermore, the provision of wider parking spaces 
should cater for larger vehicles more efficiently. In addition, any loss is offset by the 
provision of EV parking spaces which are welcomed in providing additional choice for 
electric vehicle users within the Borough and meeting sustainability requirements. The 
Highway Authority has raised no objections to the proposal.  

Drainage 

4.33 The site lies within Flood Zone 1 and there will be  no net change in the impermeable 
area being drained.  This combined with the minor nature of the works in the context of the 
site, means that the  proposal will not increase the flood risk on the site or elsewhere. The 
LLFA has raised no objections. 

Other 

4.34 A new plant area is proposed to the rear of the site. A noise survey is not considered to 
be required since this replaces the existing plant area and will be slightly further from the 
dwellings to the west than the existing; there are no residential properties immediately to 
the south so a noise condition is not considered to be necessary or reasonable. There are 
no noise conditions in relation to the existing plant and the Council's Environmental Health 
Officer has raised no objections. 

 

 

 

Page 19 of 27

Page 101

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Given the planning history context, the application complies with relevant local and 
national planning policies in terms of usage and is considered to be acceptable in principle 
and the alterations to the car park and provision of EVCP's are welcomed.  However, there 
is significant concern about the proposed frontage alterations and  the fact that an overly 
bulky and excessive size of entrance fascia/tower  would result which would give an 
unbalanced appearance to the host building and would be out of scale in relation to the host 
building and in  comparison to existing units on the retail park. It is disappointing that the 
agent has been unwilling to amend the proposals, particularly since there are many 
examples nationwide of Home Bargains stores which do not incorporate this feature, 
including newly constructed "flagship stores".This leaves your officers with little choice but 
to recommend refusal on design grounds. Should satisfactory amended plans be received 
before committee then I will be happy to re-consider the recommendation and Members will 
be updated. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that,   Planning Permission be REFUSED for the reasons set out below: 
  
1. The proposed alterations would introduce an entrance tower of excessive bulk and scale 
resulting in an excessively large signage fascia of a design that would be out of scale and 
dominating to the  host building and out of keeping with other units on the retail park and 
would result in a building of poor design and proportions on a prominent gateway just off a 
main thoroughfare into Barrow. 
  
2. By virtue of reason  1 above, the proposal would conflict with the aims of Policy DS5 of 
the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 which requires new development to be of a high 
quality of design, specific to the site and exhibiting design quality and the design principles 
of the  Council's adopted Shopfront and Advertisement Design SPD. 
 
3. By virtue of reason 1 above, the proposal would conflict with the aims of the NPPF which 
seeks to encourage good design, particularly in  Chapter 12 which relates to "Achieving well 
designed places."The proposal would conflict with  Paragraph 124 which advises: "The 
creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and 
development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities." The proposal would also conflict with Paragraph 127 of the 
NPPF which advises that planning decisions should ensure that developments are visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture and Paragraph 130 which  states: "Permission 
should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities 
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions, taking 
into account any local design standards or style guides in plans or supplementary planning 
documents"and Paragraph 132 which advises: "The quality and character of places can 
suffer when advertisements are poorly sited and designed." The proposal would also have 
the potential to lead to an excessive level of signage to the detriment of the amenity of the 
area and a precedent for similar designs elsewhere which would be difficult to resist. 
 

Page 20 of 27

Page 102

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
 
Schedule of Documents  

• Existing Site Layout – 9273-101-A 
• Existing Building Plan – 9273-102-A 
• Existing Building Elevations – 9273-103-A 
• Proposed Building Plan – 9273-105-B 
• Proposed Building Elevations – 9273-106-B 
• Proposed Site Layout – 9273-107-C 
• Existing Section-9273-108 
• Site Location Plan-100-A 

  
 
  

  

  

Page 21 of 27

Page 103

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

DATE: DRAWN BY:SCALE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

REVISION:PROJECT No:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

WPL Consulting LLP

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGAINS

SIT LOCATION PLAN

100 A

1:1250@A3 SET 2020 WPL

A 14.09.2020 Redrawn at 1:1250 Scale + Blue lin added to unit 3

2020/0563

Page 22 of 27

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



W
A

L
N

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

DRAWN BY:SCALE: DATE:

REVISION:PROJECT No:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

WPL Consulting LLP

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGAINS

EXISTING SITE LAYOUT

9273 101 A

1:200:A0 AUG 2020 WPL

A 04.11.2020 External plant shown

2020/0563

Page 23 of 27

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

DRAWN BY:SCALE: DATE:

REVISION:PROJECT No:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

WPL Consulting LLP

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGAINS

EXISTING BUILDING PLAN

9273 102 A

1:100@A0 AUG 2020 WPL

A 03.11.2020 Rear door from mezzanine shown.

bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

2020/0563

Page 24 of 27

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

NORTH EAST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE

SOUTH WEST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE

NORTH WEST ELEVATION

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

DRAWN BY:SCALE: DATE:

REVISION:PROJECT No:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

WPL Consulting LLP

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGAINS

PROPOSED BUILDING ELEVATIONS

9273 106 B

1:100@A0 AUG 2020 WPL

A 03.09.2020 Trolley park location amended
B 03.11.2020 Existing door  to unit A shown as removed

bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

2020/0563

Page 25 of 27

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



TYPICAL CROSS SECTION

RETAIL UNIT

bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

DATE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

REVISION:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT No:

SCALE:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

WPL Consulting LLP

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGAINS

EXISTING SECTION

9273 108

1:100@A2 SEPT 2020 WPL

SUBJECT TO SURVEY

2020/0563

Page 26 of 27

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



BUILDING PLAN

UNIT A & B
HOMEBARGINS

1,806sqm or 19,446sqft

UNIT C
ARGOS

1,115sqm or 12,000sqft
To Remain As Existing

EXIT
LOBBY

ENTRANCE
LOBBY

TROLLEYS

DRAWN BY:SCALE: DATE:

REVISION:PROJECT No:

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING No:

AMENDMENTREV. DATE

CHECKED BY: DATE:

Tel: 0113 202 9444   Fax: 0113 202 9333
E-mail: mail@wplconsulting.co.uk

1 Airport West   Lancaster Way   Leeds   LS19 7ZA

WPL Consulting LLP

WPL

WALNEY ROAD RETAIL PARK
WALNEY ROAD
BARROW in FURNESS
LA14 5UN
For HOMEBARGINS

PROPOSED BUILDING PLAN

9273 105 B

1:100@A0 AUG 2020 WPL

A 03.09.2020 Trolley park location amended
B 03.11.2020 Existing rear door, internal layout added & plant updated

bhome argains
TOP BRANDS - BOTTOM PRICES

PLANNING

2020/0563

Page 27 of 27

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 1



 
 
Appendices of Policies 

 
 
Note to Members 

 
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 
agenda today. 

 
 
 
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 

 
 
Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible. 

 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 
environmental gains for the Borough. 

 
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

 
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 

 
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 

 
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 
facilities; 

 
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 

 
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 
infrastructure;  

 
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 

 
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

 
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

 
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 
environmental assets; 

 
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 

 
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 

 
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 

 
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 

 
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 
Plan objectives by alternative means. 

 
 
Policy DS5 - Design 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:  

 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 
Documents; 

 
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 

 
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 

 
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 

 
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 

 
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 
structured building layout; 

 
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 

 
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 
sourced wherever possible; 

 
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 

 
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 
and public safety; 

 
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 

 

Page 112

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities;  

 
m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 

 
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 

 
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 
provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
 
 
Policy R4 - Sequential test for new retail developments in Barrow 
New retail development will be permitted in Barrow's primary shopping area. 

 
 
Where clear justification is provided by the applicant/agent and accepted by the 
Planning Authority for retail development to be located out of the primary shopping area, 
the first alternative should be an edge of centre site. An edge of centre site is one which 
is within 300 metres of the primary shopping area boundary. 

 
 
An out of centre location is the least preferred option and will only be permitted where 
clear and detailed justification is provided and accepted by the Local Planning Authority 
demonstrating that no sequentially preferable location would be feasible. 

 
 
Where it can be justified that a particular retail development is unable to be 
accommodated within the primary shopping area and an edge of centre or out of centre 
location is proposed, preference will be given to accessible sites that are well connected 
to the primary shopping area. 

 
 
Proposals for retail uses in edge of centre or out of centre locations must not prejudice 
the vitality and /or viability of the town centre as a whole and must not cause an 
unacceptable level of harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents. 

 
 
New retail uses must be situated in a location which is, or can be made accessible, by a 
range of means of transport other than the private car and which will not add excessively 
to the need to travel by private car. Where appropriate the applicant will be required to 
enter into a suitable legal agreement such as a Section 106 or 278 agreement to provide 
the necessary access and linkages. 

 
 
Applications for the removal of existing goods restrictions on units within edge of centre 
or out of centre locations must also comply with this policy and applicants must make  
clear what the operational and locational requirements of the operator are in order to 
ensure the sequential test has been carried out sufficiently. 

 
 
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



Policy R8 - Impact Assessments – Retail in Barrow 
Applications for development which creates new retail floorspace over 1,000sq m gross 
(including conversions) outside the Primary Shopping Area must be accompanied by a 
Retail Impact Assessment. This also applies to proposals to remove goods restrictions 
on units over that size outside the Primary Shopping Area. 

 
 
Applications will be refused if the development/alteration would prejudice the vitality 
and/or viability of the town centre as a whole. 

 
 
Subject to the above, such applications will only be permitted if they are situated in a 
location which is, or can be made accessible by a range of means of transport other 
than the private car and which will not add excessively to the need to travel by private 
car. Applicants may be expected to enter into a Legal Agreement with the Planning 
Authority to provide access and linkages where appropriate. 

Page 114

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	9 Planning Applications (Booklets attached).
	2020/0440 West Point House
	Consultation responses
	Officer Report
	Recommendation

	2020/0477 73 Cavendish Street
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report
	Recommendation

	Policy Appendix 
	Planning Application Booklet 2 - 17.11.20
	2020/0563  Home Bargains 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report
	Recommendation 




